
 

 

 

 
To: Members of the Performance 

Scrutiny Committee 
Date: 

 
13 March 2020 
 

 Direct Dial: 
 

01824 712554 

 e-mail: democratic@denbighshire.gov.uk 

 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
You are invited to attend a meeting of the PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE to be 
held at 10.00 am on THURSDAY, 19 MARCH 2020 in MEETING ROOM 4, COUNTY 
HALL, RUTHIN. 
 
 
 
 
 

Yours sincerely  
 
G. Williams 
Head of Legal, HR and Democratic Services 
 
AGENDA 
 
PART 1 - THE PRESS AND PUBLIC ARE INVITED TO ATTEND THIS PART OF 
THE MEETING 
 
1 APOLOGIES   

 

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  (Pages 5 - 6) 

 Members to declare any personal or prejudicial interests in any business 
identified to be considered at this meeting. 

 

3 URGENT MATTERS AS AGREED BY THE CHAIR   

 Notice of items which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be considered at the 
meeting as a matter of urgency pursuant to Section 100B(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972. 

 

4 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING  (Pages 7 - 14) 

 To receive the minutes of the Performance Scrutiny Committee meeting held 
on 30 January 2020 (copy attached). 

 

PLEASE NOTE THAT THERE IS A BRIEFING FOR ALL ELECTED 
MEMBERS AT 9:15 A.M. IMMEDIATELY PRIOR TO THE MEETING. 

 

Public Document Pack



 

5 CORPORATE RISK REGISTER REVIEW - FEBRUARY 2020  (Pages 15 - 
46) 

 To consider a report by the Strategic Planning and Performance Team 
Leader (copy attached) to update the Scrutiny Committee on the latest review 
of the Corporate Risk Register. 

10.10 a.m. – 10.45 a.m. 
 

6 C360 CRM (CUSTOMER RELATIONSHIP MANAGEMENT SYSTEM) 
UPDATE  (Pages 47 - 50) 

 To consider a report by the Service Improvement Manager (copy attached) to 
provide an overview of the implementation and development of the new C360 
CRM during the first 12 months. 

10.45 a.m. – 11.15 a.m. 
 

  
~~~~~~ BREAK (11.15 a.m. – 11.30 a.m.) ~~~~~~ 

 
 

7 DRAFT HOUSING AND HOMELESSNESS STRATEGY - PROGRESS 
UPDATE  (Pages 51 - 86) 

 To consider a report by the Senior Officer: Strategic Planning and Housing 
(copy attached) to update Scrutiny Committee on progress in developing the 
revised Housing and Homelessness Strategy. 

11.30 a.m. – 12.00 p.m. 
 

8 SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME  (Pages 87 - 106) 

 To consider a report by the Scrutiny Coordinator (copy attached) seeking a 
review of the committee’s forward work programme and updating members 
on relevant issues. 

12.00 p.m. – 12.15 p.m. 
 

9 FEEDBACK FROM COMMITTEE REPRESENTATIVES   

 To receive any updates from Committee representatives on various Council 
Boards and Groups 

12.15 p.m. – 12.30 p.m. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

MEMBERSHIP 
 
Councillors 
 
 
 

Councillor Hugh Irving (Vice-Chair) 

Ellie Chard 
Ann Davies 
Martyn Holland 
Geraint Lloyd-Williams 
 

Bob Murray 
Arwel Roberts 
Peter Scott 
David Williams 
 

 
COPIES TO: 
 
All Councillors for information 
Press and Libraries 
Town and Community Councils 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 

 

 

 
Code of Conduct for Members 
 

DISCLOSURE AND REGISTRATION OF INTERESTS 
 
  

I, (name)   

  

a *member/co-opted member of 
(*please delete as appropriate) 

Denbighshire County Council  

 
 

 

CONFIRM that I have declared a *personal / personal and prejudicial 
interest not previously declared in accordance with the provisions of Part 
III of the Council’s Code of Conduct for Members, in respect of the 
following:- 
(*please delete as appropriate) 

Date of Disclosure:   

   

Committee (please specify):   

   

Agenda Item No.   

   

Subject Matter:   

   

Nature of Interest: 

(See the note below)* 

 

 
 

 

   

Signed   

   

Date   

 

 
*Note: Please provide sufficient detail e.g. ‘I am the owner of land adjacent to the application for planning permission 
made by Mr Jones', or 'My husband / wife is an employee of the company which has made an application for financial 
assistance’. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank



 

PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of a meeting of the Performance Scrutiny Committee held in Meeting Room 4, 
County Hall, Ruthin on Thursday, 30 January 2020 at 10.00 am. 
 

PRESENT 
 

Ellie Chard, Ann Davies, Hugh Irving (Vice-Chair), Arwel Roberts and David Williams 
 
Co-opted Members Kathleen Jones and Neil Roberts attended for Agenda Item 6 – 
Verified External Examination Results  
 
Cabinet Members Councillor Bobby Feeley, Richard Mainon, Huw Hilditch-Roberts and 
Tony Thomas attended at the committee’s invitation for agenda items relating to their 
portfolios 
 
GwE representatives for business item 6:  Jacqueline Chan and Mair Herbert 
 

Observers – Councillors Meirick Lloyd-Davies and Graham Timms 
 

  

ALSO PRESENT 

 
 Chief Executive (JG), Head of Community Support Services (PG), Community Support 
Services Project Manager (AR), Head of Education and Children’s Services (KIE), Senior 
School Improvement Officer – Secondary (JM), Head of Business Improvement & 
Modernisation (AS), Performance and Programme Systems Administrator (EJ), Head of 
Communities and Customers (LG), Principal Librarian (BH), Scrutiny Co-ordinator (RhE) 
and Democratic Services Officer (KAE). 
 

 
1 APOLOGIES  

 
Apologies were received from Councillors Huw Jones (Chair), Martyn Holland, Bob 
Murray, Peter Scott and Geraint Lloyd Williams. 
 
In the absence of the Chair the Committee was presided over by the Vice-chair 
Councillor Hugh Irving. 
 
The Committee sent their warmest regards and hopes for a speedy recovery to 
Councillor Huw Jones. 
 

2 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 
Personal declaration of interest were received for Agenda Item 6 – Verified External 
Examination Results. 

 Ellie Chard – Governor at Ysgol Tir Morfa 

 Anne Davies – Governor at Ysgol y Castell 

 Arwel Roberts – Governor at Ysgol y Castell and Ysgol Dewi Sant 

 Hugh Irving – Governor at Prestatyn High School 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



 
3 URGENT MATTERS AS AGREED BY THE CHAIR  

 
None 

4 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING  
 
The minutes of the Performance Scrutiny Committee held on 28 November 2019 
were submitted.  
 

Matters Arising –  
Hafan Deg, Rhyl – the Scrutiny Coordinator confirmed that the new leaflet 
promoting the service had been distributed throughout the area. 
 
Cefndy Healthcare members visit – the Scrutiny Coordinator sought verification that 
it was a single visit for all members rather than individual visits, the Committee 
agreed. 
 
Resolved that the minutes of the meeting held on 28 November 2019 be 
received and approved as a correct record. 

5 WORK OPPORTUNITY AND DAY ACTIVITY SERVICES REVIEW  
 
In the absence (due to personal reasons) of both the Chair and Vice-Chair of the In-
house Adult Social Care Task and Finish Group the Head of Community Support 
Services introduced the report (previously circulated). The report presented the 
findings of the review of the Work Opportunity and Day Activity Services for adults 
with complex disabilities. He advised that the Task and Finish Group had recently 
considered the review’s findings and were in agreement with the conclusions drawn 
and the recommendations put forward. 
 
During the review it had become apparent that the services provided to people with 
complex learning disabilities were valued by service-users, their families and 
carers, and that a number of them wanted to see the services improve and 
develop.  The Review had concluded that: 

 Meifod Wood and Garden Control Services would both benefit from being 
operated as social enterprises as this would enable them to grow and 
develop into businesses in their own right, which would broaden the 
experiences on offer to service-users; 

 Popty Catering Services should remain as part of Community Support 
Services but capitalise on an opportunity available to re-locate to space 
available at Denbighshire Leisure Limited’s new headquarters in Denbigh, 
where a purpose built kitchen could be installed for the Service.  That 
relocation would enable Popty to develop into a work experience placement 
service and also assist the Service to further explore the viability of retaining 
the sandwich provision service within Denbighshire Leisure Limited; 

 it would be beneficial for  Job Finding to transfer into the ‘Working 
Denbighshire’ Service.  In doing so it would be able to take advantage of the 
connections and experience of a dedicated employment support service and 

Page 8



 Y Bont and the Golden Group would benefit from amalgamating as one 
single service, re-locating from Canol y Dre to a purposely refurbished area 
within County Hall in Ruthin. 

 
Responding to members’ questions the Head of Service advised that: 

 the Task and Finish Group was supportive of the proposals having received 
assurances that those individuals working within Popty would continue to be 
able to meet and socialise with other colleagues currently based with them 
in Canol y Dre, as a number of them attended other work opportunity 
services on other days; 

 it was estimated that refurbishment work to accommodate the relocation of 
services to both County Hall and Denbigh would cost in the region of £120K 
- £150K.  It was anticipated that this cost could be funded in part through a 
successful application to the Intermediate Care Fund (ICF) and to the 
Council’s own Strategic Investment Group (SIG).  There should also be 
sufficient funds available to offset the cost via the capital receipt that would 
be available upon the sale of the Canol y Dre building; 

 there would be no gap in service provision to current service-users during 
the transition period, there may actually be an overlap as the transition 
would be gradual with service-users being introduced to their new 
surroundings using a phased familiarisation approach; 

 architects and other specialists would be engaged to design appropriate 
washroom and rest facilities at County Hall to meet service-users’ needs 
and 

 developing Meifod Wood and Garden Control into social enterprises would 
open up opportunities for both services and help ensure that sufficient staff 
capacity would be available to cover sickness leave etc. 

 
Committee members were keen to visit the current services delivered from Canol y 
Dre, Meifod Wood and Garden Control and the Head of Service agreed to facilitate 
the visits.  The Committee: 
 
Resolved:  to report to Cabinet, that 
 

I. it had read, understood and taken account of the Well-being Impact 
Assessment (Appendix 1) as part of its consideration; 

II. subject to the above observations, it supported the intention to 
relocate four services (Popty Catering Services, Y Bont, Jobfinding and 
The Golden Group) and to combine Y Bont and the Golden Group into 
one co-located service; and 

III. it recommended for approval the proposal to explore the setting up of 
social firms relating to two activities currently being carried out by the 
Service, namely Meifod Wood and Garden Control 

 
6 VERIFIED EXTERNAL EXAMINATION RESULTS  

 
The Head of Education introduced the report and appendices (previously circulated)  
emphasising that one of the challenges facing the Service at present was that they 
were delivering services during a period of time when they were waiting for the 
imminent introduction of a new curriculum.  That meant they were currently 

Page 9



delivering the service without knowing which indicators they would be assessed 
against, as these were yet to be agreed.  Whilst  education practitioners 
acknowledged  that the narrow set of indicators previously used to measure pupils’ 
educational attainment had had a detrimental effect on pupils and schools, the data 
presented for the last academic year did not present a true and holistic illustration of 
each individual pupil’s achievement.   
 
Responding to members’ questions the Lead Member, Head of Service, Principal 
Education Manager and GwE representatives advised that: 

 whilst there was an element of correlation between deprivation, poverty and 
poor educational performance there were other contributing factors such as 
mental health and well-being issues.  Mental health was the greatest 
challenge faced by Education and Children’s Services at present; 

 Denbighshire was fully aware of where its Educated Other Than at School 
(EOTAS) pupils were being educated and had an education and well-being 
profile on each one, therefore officers knew exactly what their needs were 
and their capabilities; 

 a lot of work in the county’s deprived areas centred around the transition of 
young children into education;  

 County education staff and GwE regularly tracked the progress of individual 
schools and pupils at all Key Stages (KS) and could therefore tailor their 
programme of support to each individual school’s specific needs; 

 due to the experimental work being undertaken at the KS3 phase the ‘dip’ in 
performance at this stage should not be a cause of concern, as there was a 
decrease in attainment on a national basis in 2019; 

 it was difficult to compare performance at KS4 in 2019 with previous years 
due to the significant changes in the education programme in Wales and the 
fact that the national data capture for individual schools was now based on 
first entry results.  Nevertheless, there had been an improvement in Science 
results; 

 pupils’ attainment for Welsh language qualifications were above the national 
average in three of the four key stages.  That was a reflection of the 
investment made in recent years in Welsh medium education in the County; 

 the Education Service’s aim was for each pupil  and school to achieve the 
best they could, commensurate with their ability, hence the emphasis in 
Denbighshire on providing clear, transparent qualitative information on 
attainment; 

 examination results illustrated one specific aspect of education whilst Estyn 
inspection reports provided a far more holistic picture and analysis of the 
quality of education, care and leadership provided by the schools and the 
Education Authority, as they had regard to other aspects of the curriculum 
and extra-curricular activities and their impact on a pupil’s general well-
being; 

 Denbighshire’s Head of Education and Children’s Services was the present 
Chair of the Association of Directors of Education in Wales (ADEW). She 
was therefore able to share with other Directors of Education Denbighshire’s 
experience of amalgamating both Education and Children’s Services under 
one head of service and the benefits that brought to devising a whole child 
approach to service delivery; 

Page 10



 Christ the Word School, being an all-through school, was not in a position to 
benefit from the very effective ‘cluster’ arrangements available to other 
schools in the county.  However, they were able to work with other local 
head teachers and schools to share experiences and practices.  
Representatives from the school had recently attended a meeting of the 
School Standards Monitoring Group (SSMG) and whilst there were still 
challenges to overcome they had given the Group a positive presentation 
and vision for the future and 

 school exclusion data which the Committee had requested would be 
published nationally within the forthcoming few weeks and would be 
circulated to Committee members when available. 

 
At the conclusion of the discussion the Committee congratulated the Education 
Service, GwE, teachers and pupils on their performance during the 2018/19 
academic year.   Having reviewed the performance data available they felt assured 
that the County’s education staff and GwE had an in-depth knowledge and 
understanding of each pupil’s capabilities, aspects which required improvement and 
where resources required to be focussed in order to improve attainment and 
support pupils to achieve to the best of their abilities.  This was commendable 
considering the pressures caused by the imminent introduction of a new curriculum 
and the non-availability of national benchmarking data. 
It was therefore: 
 
Resolved: - subject to the above observations: 
 

i. to receive the information relating to the verified performance of the 
county’s school pupils at Key Stage 4 and post 16 examinations during 
the summer of 2019, acknowledging the barriers that existed which 
fettered the Education Service from undertaking comparison exercises 
with previous years’ results and with the results of other local 
education authorities; and 

ii. that they were satisfied that both the Council’s Education Service staff 
and GwE personnel had identified the emerging trends and areas which 
would require improvement going forward at all Key Stages.  

 
7 DRAFT STREET NAMING AND NUMBERING POLICY  

 
The Lead Member for Corporate Services and Strategic Direction introduced the 
report (previously circulated) and the conclusions of the review, which had been 
instigated at Scrutiny’s request following its concerns that the policy did not properly 
reflect the requirements of the Council’s Welsh Language policy. 
 
The Performance and Programme Systems Administrator outlined the steps taken 
as part of the review, which included seeking guidance and advice from the Welsh 
Language Commissioner’s Office.   
 
Members were advised that: 

 having one official name for all new streets would assist the blue light 
services and others to locate properties quickly in the event of an 
emergency; 

Page 11



 the Armed Forces agreed that streets should not as a matter of course be 
named after fallen serving personnel, they felt that this would only possibly 
merit consideration if they had been awarded gallantry honours of the 
highest level e.g. the Victoria Cross; 

 the new policy would not advocate bilingual street names from now on, but 
that all new streets should be given Welsh only names; 

 English only street names already in existence would remain thus, no 
bilingual street signs would be erected to replace these signs when they 
required replacing; 

 although some street names were literal translations of the original Welsh or 
English names, others were not and therefore if both version were displayed 
they could cause confusion for the emergency services.  The County did 
have a record of all officially recognised street names in both Welsh and 
English, these were known as ‘Type 4’ street names. 

 
Members mentioned that upon local government re-organisation in 1996 
Denbighshire had adopted a policy of replacing all street name signs with bilingual 
signs, however this replacement programme had not been fully delivered. 
 
Councillor Arwel Roberts requested that his disagreement with the policy of not 
replacing English street name signs, as and when they required replacing, with 
bilingual signs be placed on record.  
 
The Committee: 
 
Resolved: - subject to the above observations and the noted objection, that – 
 

i. all new streets be named in Welsh only; 
ii. the option to name streets after individuals be removed from the 

policy; 
iii. the Council’s policy be amended to reflect this and presented to 

Cabinet for approval; and 
iv. it had read, understood and taken account of the Well-being Impact 

Assessment (Appendix 5) as part of its consideration 
 
 

8 LIBRARY SERVICE STANDARDS 2018-19 AND DRAFT LIBRARY SERVICE 
STRATEGY  
 
The Lead Member for Housing and Communities introduced the report and 
appendices (previously circulated) emphasising that Denbighshire had during 2018-
19 met all 12 core entitlements set by the Welsh Government’s (WG) Museums and 
Libraries Division (MALD).  In addition it had achieved in full 8 of 10 constituent 
targets of the Quality Indicators, partially met one, and failed to achieve the one 
target which related to acquiring up-to-date reading materials per 1,000 population.   
 
Members were advised by the Head of Communities and Customers and the 
Principal Librarian that the County’s Library Service was extremely popular with 
residents and well visited by users as the statistics demonstrated.  The reason for 

Page 12



this was that the Library Service delivered the services that residents wanted and 
helped residents to access Council and other services near to home.   
 
The modern library service was much more than a book borrowing service, it 
helped deliver the County’s Volunteering Strategy, supported the delivery of the 
health and well-being agenda and hosted social gatherings for all age groups 
ranging from babies to the elderly which mitigated against social isolation. 
 
Members praised the Service and its staff for the wide-range of services they 
delivered and commended them on the excellent MALD report and the efficient 
execution of the bus pass renewal service 
 
Responding to members’ questions the Lead Member, Head of Service and 
Principal Librarian: 

 confirmed that it was the Service’s intention to roll out the ‘dementia memory 
packs’, currently available to users of Prestatyn Library, to all libraries in due 
course via funding secured from Denbighshire Voluntary Services Council ‘s 
(DVSC) Dementia Aware Denbighshire plan 

 advised that the Service was working closely with town councils in an 
attempt to increase footfall in the libraries even further, in particular to entice 
people from nearby towns and villages that did not have a library of their 
own to attend and use their nearest library 

 confirmed that consideration was being given to relocating Rhyl’s Library to 
the former Queen’s Market site in the town as part of the area’s 
redevelopment, although no firm decision had yet been taken  

 
The Committee: 
 
Resolved:  - subject to the above observations on the performance against 
the 6th Framework of Welsh Public Library Standards to receive the report, 
commend the Service and its staff on their excellent service and 
performance, and request that a progress report be presented to the 
Committee in January 2021 
 

9 SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME  
 
The Scrutiny Co-ordinator introduced the report (previously circulated) seeking 
Members’ review of the Committee’s work programme and providing an update on 
relevant issues. Members were reminded that the proposal form for scrutiny forward 
work programme (appendix 2) should be completed for the Scrutiny Chairs and 
Vice-chairs Group (SC&VCG) to review and allocate. There was still time to submit 
any urgent forms for the SC&VCG meeting that afternoon, the next meeting would 
then be 19th March. 
 
The Scrutiny Co-ordinator advised the Committee that March’s agenda only had 
two items but two of them were substantial topics and suggested that no further 
items be added. The committee agreed and requested that the relevant lead 
members be invited. 
 

Page 13



Resolved that subject to the above that the Performance Scrutiny Committee 
Forward Work Plan be noted. 

10 FEEDBACK FROM COMMITTEE REPRESENTATIVES  
 
Councillors Ellie Chard and Arwel Roberts were due to attend a Schools Standards 
Monitoring Group meeting at Denbigh High School that afternoon. 
 

Meeting concluded at 12:35 

Page 14



 

Report to Performance Scrutiny Committee 

Date of meeting 19 March 2020 

Lead Member/Officer Julian Thompson-Hill, Lead Member for Finance, 

Performance & Assets/ Alan Smith, Head of Business 

Improvement & Modernisation 

Report author Iolo McGregor, Strategic Planning & Performance Team 

Leader 

Title Corporate Risk Register Review, February 2020 

1. What is the report about? 

1.1. An update on the February review of the Corporate Risk Register. 

2. What is the reason for making this report? 

2.1. This report is to update the Committee on the latest review of the Corporate 

Risk Register. 

3. What are the Recommendations? 

3.1. That Performance Scrutiny Committee considers the amendments to the 

Corporate Risk Register and comments accordingly. 

4. Report details 

4.1. The Corporate Risk Register is developed and owned by the Senior Leadership 

Team (SLT) alongside Cabinet. It is formally reviewed twice yearly by Cabinet 

at Cabinet Briefing. 

4.2. Following each formal review, the revised register is presented to Performance 

Scrutiny Committee, and is shared with the Corporate Governance Committee.  

4.3. The last review was undertaken in September 2019.  

Page 15

Agenda Item 5



 
 

4.4. The Council’s new risk appetite approach was adopted during the last review. 

This has now been applied to the discussions that we have had with risk 

owners, and is monitored through an additional column in appendix 2. 

4.5. During this latest review, there have been quite a number of updates around 

risk descriptions, impacts / consequences, and actions. A couple of risks have 

been newly scored. These changes are all specified in appendix 2.  

4.6. In summary: 

 One new risk has been identified by SLT – 00045: The risk that the Council 

is unable to deliver the agenda of Council and external organisations within 

existing resources. Details are contained in appendix 2. 

 Risk 00011 (The risk of an ineffective response to a serious unexpected 

event) has been updated to reflect the current Covid19 outbreak. The 

inherent and residual severity has been rescored, increasing from D2 

(Orange) to A2 (Red), and E2 (Yellow) to C3 (Yellow) respectively. 

 No risks have been removed. 

 Where there existed references to the Corporate Executive Team (CET), 

these have been removed or amended to the Senior Leadership Team 

(SLT) as appropriate. Similarly references to the previous Corporate Plan 

programme board structure have been updated to reflect changes there.  

 Our risk concerning Health & Safety has now transferred from the 

Corporate Director for the Economy and Public Realm to the Head of 

Finance and Property, who has strategic responsibility for Health & Safety. 

 Our risk concerning our statutory obligations under the Additional Learning 

Needs and Education Tribunal (Wales) Act 2018 has now transferred from 

the Corporate Director for Communities to the Head of Education & 

Children’s Services. 

 Where applicable, financial information has now been updated to reflect the 

latest settlement from Welsh Government. 

Page 16



 
 

 Throughout the register, positive updates and additions have been made 

around our controls in place, and in some cases further actions identified. 

 The risk around Ash Dieback (identified from the September review) now 

has more detail, with new controls and further actions added. Now that the 

risk is getting to be better understood, the inherent and residual severity has 

been rescored, increasing from A2 (Red) to A1 (Red), and A3 (Orange) to 

A2 (Red) respectively. 

 No risks have decreased in their severity. 

 Risks 1, 6, 12, 21, 27, 33, 34, 36, 37 and 44 (see appendix 2) are currently 

inconsistent with the council’s Risk Appetite Statement (appendix 3). These 

have been reviewed in discussions with risk owners, their current scorings 

being agreed as appropriate. This discrepancy justifies their inclusion to be 

monitored as corporate risks. 

5. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate 
Priorities? 

5.1. The purpose of the Corporate Risk Register is to identify the potential future 

events that may have a detrimental impact on the council’s ability to deliver its 

objectives, including its corporate priorities. The identified controls and actions 

are therefore crucial to the delivery of the corporate priorities. 

6. What will it cost and how will it affect other services? 

6.1. The cost of developing, monitoring and reviewing the Corporate Risk Register is 

absorbed within existing budgets. 

7. What are the main conclusions of the Well-being Impact 
Assessment? 

7.1. This Corporate Risk Register documents identified risks and mitigating actions. 

The process of developing and reviewing the document itself does not impact 

adversely on any of the well-being goals. However, any new process, strategy 

or policy arising as a result of a mitigating action will probably require a well-

being impact assessment. 

Page 17



 
 

8. What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny 
and others? 

8.1. Prior to SLT, individual discussions have been held with Risk Owners (Chief 

Executive Officer, Corporate Directors, Head of Finance & Property, and Head 

of Highways, Facilities & Environmental Services), also including input from the 

Head of Legal, HR & Democratic Services and the Chief Internal Auditor. 

8.2. The register is then discussed with SLT and Cabinet to agree and/or make 

further amendments. 

8.3. The updated register is then considered by Performance Scrutiny Committee, 

and shared with the Corporate Governance Committee. 

9. Chief Finance Officer Statement 

9.1. There are no financial implications arising from developing, monitoring and 

reviewing the Corporate Risk Register. 

10. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to 
reduce them? 

10.1. There are no risks associated with this review. 

11. Power to make the decision 

11.1. Local Government Act 2000. 

11.2. Section 7.2.1 of the Council’s Constitution stipulates that Scrutiny should review 

or scrutinise decisions made or actions taken in connection with the discharge 

of any of the Council’s functions whether by Cabinet or another part of the 

Council. 

Page 18



Page 1 of 14

Page 19



Page 2 of 14

Page 20



Page 3 of 14

Page 21



Page 4 of 14

Page 22



Page 5 of 14

Page 23



Page 6 of 14

Page 24



Page 7 of 14

Page 25



Page 8 of 14

Page 26



Page 9 of 14

Page 27



Page 10 of 14

Page 28



Page 11 of 14

Page 29



Page 12 of 14

Page 30



Page 13 of 14

Page 31



Page 14 of 14

Page 32



Appendix 2: Amendments to the Corporate Risk Register 
 

Risk – New 

Risk 
Number 

Title Inherent 
Risk 

Residual 
Risk 

Risk Owners In alignment with the 
Council’s Risk Appetite 

Statement? 

Suggested amendment 

00045 The risk that the council is unable to 

deliver the agenda of Council and 

external organisations within 

existing resources 

A3 C4 Judith Greenhalgh 

and Cllr Hugh H 

Evans 

Consistent with Risk 

Appetite. 

Description added: 

“As resources have reduced, there is less 

capacity to additionally respond to new, 

emerging and unplanned issues of importance 

to residents, councillors or partners.” 

 

Impact / Consequences added: 

“No. 1 – Damage to reputation 

No. 2 – Financial liabilities 

No. 3 – Regulatory liabilities 

No. 4 – Deteriorating Staff morale 

No. 5 – Inability to meet statutory obligations” 

 

Controls added: 

“No. 1 – The content of the Corporate Plan was 

developed and agreed with officers and 

Members at the start of the new council year. 

This document should capture the ambition of 

Elected Members for their term of office. 

No. 2 – The Council partakes in government 

consultations on new legislation (either 

directly or through the WLGA). 

P
age 33



Risk 
Number 

Title Inherent 
Risk 

Residual 
Risk 

Risk Owners In alignment with the 
Council’s Risk Appetite 

Statement? 

Suggested amendment 

No. 3 – Heads of Service assume responsibility 

for the implementation of new legislation, 

supported by the Strategic Planning Team 

where appropriate.” 

 

Risks – Suggested Changes 

Risk 
Number 

Title Inherent 
Risk 

Residual 
Risk 

Risk Owners In alignment with the 
Council’s Risk Appetite 

Statement? 

Suggested amendment 

00001 The risk of a serious safeguarding 

error where the council has 

responsibility, resulting in serious 

harm or death 

B2 D2 Nicola Stubbins, Cllr 

Bobby Feeley, Cllr 

Huw Hilditch-

Roberts and Cllr 

Mark Young 

Major risk. Risk Appetite 

suggests that this should 

be at most a moderate 

risk. The Risk Owner has 

confirmed that they are 

comfortable that the 

scoring accurately reflects 

the current risk to the 

council. 

Control added: 

“No. 18 – Adoption of new Wales Safeguarding 

Procedures.” 

 

Further action removed: 

Monitoring of staff completion of the 

safeguarding e-module is now routinely 

monitored by HR and managers. An indicator is 

also included within the Service Plan for Legal, 

HR and Democratic Services. 

 

Further action (00078) – description updated: 

“Safer Recruitments stats are monitored each 

month for new employees and figures 

provided to the Corporate Safeguarding panel 

on a quarterly basis.” Statistics for the 

P
age 34



Risk 
Number 

Title Inherent 
Risk 

Residual 
Risk 

Risk Owners In alignment with the 
Council’s Risk Appetite 

Statement? 

Suggested amendment 

December 2019 meeting have been uploaded 

to the register (appendix 1). 

00006 The risk that the economic and 

financial environment worsens 

beyond current expectations, 

leading to additional demand on 

services and reduced income. 

C1 C2 Judith Greenhalgh 

and Cllr Julian 

Thompson-Hill 

Major risk. Risk Appetite 

suggests that this should 

be at most a moderate 

risk. The Risk Owner has 

confirmed that they are 

comfortable that the 

scoring accurately reflects 

the current risk to the 

council. 

Description updated: 

“Although the latest draft budget settlement 

(4.3% increase in Revenue Support Grant) is 

welcome it still falls short of the 10% that 

would have been required in order to fund all 

the pressures that the Council is facing. The 

levels of future settlements are unknown yet 

and we await the UK Budget in March 2020.” 

 

Further action removed:  

“CET to continually consider the residual risk 

score in light of Brexit.” This is done routinely 

with SLT now, as reflected within existing 

controls. 

00011 The risk of an ineffective response 

to a serious unexpected event, such 

as severe weather, contamination, 

public safety (including cyber-

attack) or a public health event. 

D2 E2 Graham Boase and 

Cllr Richard Mainon 

Consistent with Risk 

Appetite. 

Inherent Risk:  
Changed from D2 to A2. 
 
Control added: 
“No. 15 – Covid19 Control: Emlyn Jones, Head 
of Planning, Public Protection & Countryside 
Services to coordinate key messages from the 
UK Government, Welsh Government, Public 
Health Wales / England, the WLGA and 
professional bodies, responding as 
appropriate. Staff have been asked to forward 

P
age 35



Risk 
Number 

Title Inherent 
Risk 

Residual 
Risk 

Risk Owners In alignment with the 
Council’s Risk Appetite 

Statement? 

Suggested amendment 

any information or queries that they receive to 
him. A similar request has been sent by Cllr 
Richard Mainon (Lead Member for Emergency 
Planning) to all Members. Arrangements are 
being kept under review and changes will be 
communicated.” 
 
Residual Risk:  
Changed from E2 to C3. 
 
Further action amended: 
Due date for review of business continuity 
policy changed to 30/06/2020. 

00013 The risk of significant liabilities 

resulting from alternative models of 

service delivery 

B2 E2 Judith Greenhalgh 

and Cllr Julian 

Thompson-Hill 

Consistent with Risk 

Appetite. 

Description amended:  
“Liabilities could arise due to financial, HR, 
safeguarding, or general management 
governance problems and could impact on the 
sustainability of service provision” 
 
Impact / Consequences added: 
“No. 4 – Collapse of Company” 
“No. 6 – Safeguarding to include protection of 
all assets (physical & intellectual Information)” 
 
Control amended: 
“No.1 – A rigorous process is in place to ensure 
appropriate governance arrangements are in 
place as ADMs are established.” 
 

P
age 36



Risk 
Number 

Title Inherent 
Risk 

Residual 
Risk 

Risk Owners In alignment with the 
Council’s Risk Appetite 

Statement? 

Suggested amendment 

Controls added: 
“No. 2 – Effective contract management 
arrangements are in place and appropriate 
monitoring is carried out throughout the life of 
the contract.” 
“No. 8 – Register of all ADMs.” 
“No. 9 – Ensure best practice / lessons learned 
is applied to our robust contract and 
relationship management of ADM models.” 
“No. 11 – Compliance with current legislation 
and approved accredited standards as 
appropriate.” 

00014 The risk of a health & safety 

incident resulting in serious injury 

or the loss of life. (Where H&S is 

referred to, this incorporates fire 

safety) 

C2 E2 Steve Gadd and Cllr 

Julian Thompson-

Hill 

Consistent with Risk 

Appetite. 

Risk Owner updated:  
From Graham Boase, Corporate Director for 
the Economy and Public Realm, to Steve Gadd, 
Head of Finance and Property. 
 
Control updated:  
“No. 1 – Strategic leadership is provided by the 
Head of Finance & Property, with delegated 
responsibility for Health and Safety.” 
 

00016 The risk that the impact of welfare 

reform (Universal Credit) is more 

significant than anticipated by the 

council. 

B2 D3 Steve Gadd, Cllr 

Bobby Feeley and 

Cllr Julian 

Thompson-Hill 

Consistent with Risk 

Appetite. 

Impact / Consequences updated: 
“No. 3. Potential rise of council tax reduction 
scheme claimants.” 

P
age 37



Risk 
Number 

Title Inherent 
Risk 

Residual 
Risk 

Risk Owners In alignment with the 
Council’s Risk Appetite 

Statement? 

Suggested amendment 

00018 The risk that programme and 

project benefits are not fully 

realised. 

B2 D2 Judith Greenhalgh 

and Cllr Julian 

Thompson-Hill 

Consistent with Risk 

Appetite. 

Description updated:  

Amended to reflect change to Corporate Plan 

programme board structure, where now there 

will be one single Corporate Plan Board, 

attended by all of SLT and Cabinet. 

 

Control added:  

“No. 10. Quarterly Performance Reports on the 

Corporate Plan are sent to SLT, Cabinet and 

Scrutiny.” 

 

Controls updated: 

Nos. 3, 12 & 13 – Amended to reflect change in 

programme board structure. 

“No. 6 – Use of Verto to record benefit 

tracking and significant outcomes from 

projects will be picked up as part of service 

plan process.” 

No. 11 – SLT now reviews key projects 

quarterly, not CET. 

00021 The risk that effective partnerships 

and interfaces between BCU Health 

Board and Denbighshire County 

Council (DCC) do not develop, 

leading to significant misalignment 

between the strategic and 

A1 C2 Nicola Stubbins and 

Cllr Bobby Feeley 

Major risk. Risk Appetite 

suggests that this should 

be at most a moderate 

risk. The Risk Owner has 

confirmed that they are 

comfortable that the 

scoring accurately reflects 

Control updated:  

“No. 1 – DCC presence in key meetings and 

Boards looking at implementing integrated 

new approaches.” 

 

Further action added: 

P
age 38



Risk 
Number 

Title Inherent 
Risk 

Residual 
Risk 

Risk Owners In alignment with the 
Council’s Risk Appetite 

Statement? 

Suggested amendment 

operational direction of BCU and 

DCC 

the current risk to the 

council. 

“Completion of Community Resources project, 

to include delivery of two further sites in 

Denbigh and Prestatyn” – by 31/03/21. 

00027 The risk that even if the settlement 

is as anticipated, decisions that are 

necessary to identify and deliver 

the savings programme and enable 

a balanced budget  are not taken or 

implemented quickly enough 

B1 C2 Judith Greenhalgh 

and Cllr Hugh Evans 

Major risk. Risk Appetite 

suggests that this should 

be at most a moderate 

risk. The Risk Owner has 

confirmed that they are 

comfortable that the 

scoring accurately reflects 

the current risk to the 

council. 

Control updated:  

“No. 3 – The better than expected settlement 

for 2020/21 means that only savings with 

minimum impact on service delivery and staff 

have been accepted.” 

 

 

Further action added: 

“Review Strategic Investment Group (SIG) 

process” – by 31/03/20. 

00030 The risk that Senior Leadership 

capacity and skills to sustain service 

and corporate performance is not 

available 

C3 D3 Judith Greenhalgh 

and Cllr Hugh Evans 

Consistent with Risk 

Appetite. 

Title amended from:  

“The risk that appropriate capacity and skills to 

sustain service and corporate performance is 

not available.” 

 

Description and controls updated:  

To reflect changes to Senior Leadership Team 

since September (i.e. references to CET, and 

chair of Corporate Plan Programme Board). 

 

Control removed:  

Control no. 2, which concerned the 

appointment of senior middle managers. 

There are no new appointments. 

P
age 39



Risk 
Number 

Title Inherent 
Risk 

Residual 
Risk 

Risk Owners In alignment with the 
Council’s Risk Appetite 

Statement? 

Suggested amendment 

00031 The risk of fraud and corruption 

resulting in financial and 

reputational loss and possibly 

impacting on service delivery. 

C2 E2 Judith Greenhalgh 

and Cllr Julian 

Thompson-Hill 

Consistent with Risk 

Appetite. 

Control added: 

“No. 14 – Engagement with the National Fraud 

Initiative (NFI)” 

“No.15 – Strategy for the prevention and 

detection of fraud corruption and bribery 

which also includes fraud response plan” 

“No.16 – E-learning modules on 

Whistleblowing and Code of conduct” 

 

00033 The risk that the cost of care is 

outstripping the Council’s resource 

B1 C2 Nicola Stubbins and 

Cllr Bobby Feeley 

Major risk. Risk Appetite 

suggests that this should 

be at most a moderate 

risk. The Risk Owner has 

confirmed that they are 

comfortable that the 

scoring accurately reflects 

the current risk to the 

council. 

Control added:  

“No. 10 – Opportunities arising from the 

Healthier Wales Transformation Programme.” 

 

Control updated:  

“The Budget for 2020/21 has attempted to 

meet the growth in this area for 2020/21 with 

an additional budget of £2.6m added. It is 

recognised that growth in demand will 

continue in future years.” 

00036 The risk that any negative impacts 

of leaving the European Union 

cannot be mitigated by the council 

B1 B1 Judith Greenhalgh 

and Cllr Hugh Evans 

Major risk. Risk Appetite 

suggests that this should 

be at most a moderate 

risk. The Risk Owner has 

confirmed that they are 

comfortable that the 

scoring accurately reflects 

Impact / Consequence added:  
“No. 11 – Denbighshire businesses that 
import/export to European Union areas.” 
 
Impact / Consequence removed: 

P
age 40



Risk 
Number 

Title Inherent 
Risk 

Residual 
Risk 

Risk Owners In alignment with the 
Council’s Risk Appetite 

Statement? 

Suggested amendment 

the current risk to the 

council. 

Impact / consequence no. 10, concerning 

potential electoral issues, is no longer felt to 

be current. 

00037 The risk that partners don't have 

the resources, matching priorities 

or commitment to support delivery 

of shared plans and priorities 

B1 C2 Judith Greenhalgh 

and Cllr Hugh Evans 

Major risk. Risk Appetite 

suggests that this should 

be at most a moderate 

risk. The Risk Owner has 

confirmed that they are 

comfortable that the 

scoring accurately reflects 

the current risk to the 

council. 

Control amended:  

“No. 1 – Denbighshire is represented at 

collaborative boards by senior managers and / 

or political leadership, for example, at the 

Regional Partnership Board, Economic 

Ambition Board, and Regional Leadership 

Board.” 

00043 The risk that the council does not 

have the funds or resources to 

meet its statutory obligations under 

the Additional Learning Needs and 

Education Tribunal (Wales) Act 

2018 

B2 D3 Karen I Evans, Cllr  

Bobby Feeley and 

Cllr Huw Hilditch-

Roberts 

Consistent with Risk 

Appetite. 

Risk Owner updated:  
From Nicola Stubbins, Corporate Director for 
Communities, to Karen I Evans, Head of 
Education & Children’s Services. 
 

Further action added:  

“Pressure to be considered as part of budget 

setting process for 2021-22 as the implications 

become clear”– by December 2020. 

00044 The risk of Ash Dieback Disease 

(ADB) in Denbighshire leading to 

significant health and safety issues 

that represent a potential risk to life 

A1 A2 Tony Ward and Cllr 

Tony Thomas 

Major risk. Risk Appetite 

suggests that this should 

be at most a moderate 

risk. Our management of 

this difficult risk is in its 

Title amended from:  
“The risk of Ash Dieback Disease (ADB) in 
Denbighshire leading to serious disruption, 
Budgetary impacts, risks to infrastructure and 
the increased potential for deaths and injuries” 

P
age 41



Risk 
Number 

Title Inherent 
Risk 

Residual 
Risk 

Risk Owners In alignment with the 
Council’s Risk Appetite 

Statement? 

Suggested amendment 

early stages, and our 

current score reflects this. 

As our mitigating actions 

progress over the next 12 

months, we would expect 

to see the risk come more 

under our control, and the 

scoring reduce towards 

our accepted appetite. 

 
Lead Member updated: 
Cllr Tony Thomas is the only Lead Member for 
this. Risk was previously shared with Cllr Brian 
Jones. 
 
Impact / Consequences updated: 
“The impact is likely to be far reaching, across 
various Council services and communities 
themselves. 
No. 1 – Considerable impact on landscape - 
dead and dying ash trees across the County. 
No. 2 – Increased liability. 
No. 3 – Impacts on statutory functions and 
service delivery. 
No. 4 – Public safety. 
No. 5 – Staff safety. 
No. 6 – Significant budgetary implications. 
No. 7 – Disruption to infrastructure and 
communities. 
No. 8 – Political and reputational impact.” 
 
Inherent Risk:  
Changed from A2 to A1. 
 
Controls added: 
“No. 1 – A briefing paper on our approach 
went to Cabinet in December 2019. 

P
age 42



Risk 
Number 

Title Inherent 
Risk 

Residual 
Risk 

Risk Owners In alignment with the 
Council’s Risk Appetite 

Statement? 

Suggested amendment 

No. 2 – Project brief is being drawn up 
(through Verto) outlining our approach to 
developing our action plan over the next 12 
months, and agreeing procedures to identify 
and deal with trees (including replanting 
initiatives).  
No. 3 – We are exploring collaboration 
opportunities with Conwy County Borough 
Council. 
No. 4 – 200k identified within council budget 
to support initial development of Action Plan.” 

 
Residual Risk:  
Change from A3 to A2. 
 
 
Further Actions added: 
“No. 1 – Recruit staff / tree inspectors” – April 

2020 

“No. 2 – Formally establish the collaborative 

project with CCBC” – February 2020 

“No. 3 – Develop and adopt a corporate action 

plan for Ash Dieback” – March 2021 

“No. 4 – Secure further funding for delivery of 

the action plan” – December 2020. 

 

Risks – No Change  

P
age 43



Risk 
Number 

Title Inherent 
Risk 

Residual 
Risk 

Risk Owners In alignment with the Council’s Risk Appetite Statement? 

00012 The risk of a significantly negative 

report(s) from external regulators. 

C2 D3 Judith Greenhalgh 

and Cllr Hugh Evans 

Moderate risk. Risk Appetite suggests that this should be at most a 

minor risk. The Risk Owner has confirmed that they are comfortable that 

the scoring accurately reflects the current risk to the council. 

00034 The risk that demand for specialist 

care cannot be met locally 

B2 C2 Nicola Stubbins, Cllr  

Bobby Feeley and 

Cllr Huw Hilditch-

Roberts 

Major risk. Risk Appetite suggests that this should be at most a 

moderate risk. The Risk Owner has confirmed that they are comfortable 

that the scoring accurately reflects the current risk to the council. 

00035 The risk that the return on 

investment that Denbighshire 

receives from the Regional Growth 

Deal is disproportionate 

C2 C2 Graham Boase and 

Cllr Hugh Evans 

Consistent with Risk Appetite. 

 

P
age 44



  

Appendix 3 
 
Risk Scoring Matrix 
 

 
 
The combination of impact and likelihood results in a risk exposure rating of: 

 
 

Minor Risk easily managed locally – no need to involve management 

 
  

 
Moderate 

Risk containable at service level – senior management and SLT may need to be 
kept informed 

 
  

 
Major Intervention by SLT with Cabinet involvement 

 
  

 
Critical Significant SLT and Cabinet intervention 

Page 45



  

Risk Appetite (Agreed September 2019) 
 
The following table summarises our risk appetite in relation to different aspects of council business: 
 

 
 

 Classification and description 
 
 
 

 Adverse Minimalist Cautious Open Hungry 

 Avoidance of 
risk and 

uncertainty is a 
key 

organisational 
objective 

 

Preference for 
ultra-safe 

options that 
have a low 
degree of 

inherent risk 
and have a 

potential for 
only limited 

reward 
 

Preference for 
safe options 
that have a 

medium 
degree of 

inherent risk 
and may have 
some potential 

for rewards 
 

Willing to 
consider all 
options and 
choose one 
that is most 

likely to result 
in successful 
delivery with 

an acceptable 
level of reward 
(and value for 

money) 

Eager to be 
innovative and 

to choose 
options 
offering 

potentially 
higher 

business 
rewards 

despite greater 
inherent risk 

Reputation & 
Credibility 

     

Operational & Policy 
Delivery 

     

Financial   (Treasury 
Management) 

(Projects)  

Compliance & 
Regulation 

     

People (Workforce)  (Terms & 
Conditions) 

(Learning & 
Development) 

  

Willingness to take risks Unacceptable to take risks 

P
age 46



 

Report to Performance Scrutiny Committee 

Date of meeting 19 March 2020 

Lead Member/Officer Councillor Huw Hilditch-Roberts (Lead Member for 

Education, Children’s Services & Public Engagement)/Liz 

Grieve (Head of Communities and Customers) 

Report author Ffion Angharad (Service Improvement Manager) 

Title C360 CRM (Customer Relationship Management System) –

Update 

1. What is the report about? 

1.1. This report provides an overview of the implementation and development of the 

new C360 CRM during the first 12 months. 

2. What is the reason for making this report? 

 2.1  To enable the Committee to fulfil its scrutiny role in monitoring:  

a) The implementation and development of the C360 CRM system  

b) The system capabilities in terms of delivering efficient and effective customer 

focussed service  

3. What are the Recommendations? 

3.1 That the Committee considers the contents of the report and, if appropriate, identifies 

any areas that require further scrutiny; and 

3.2 That a further report be submitted to the Committee for consideration following a 

reasonable period of time operating as business as usual. 

  

Page 47

Agenda Item 6



 
 

4. Report details 

As the C360 CRM project is still at implementation stage, it is not possible to report 

fully on ‘performance in line with the product specification and the Council’s 

expectation’ at this time. This will be considered once the project closes and the 

system operates on a ‘business as usual’ basis. 

 

Further to this, as the C360 CRM is a replacement system (essential due to the original 

LACRM having reached ‘end of life’) we can only assess its value against the risk of 

not procuring i.e. continuing to operate using an ‘unsupported’ product which would 

eventually become ‘not fit for purpose’.  

 

4.1 Background 

Following a period of consultation with service staff and users during 2018, the 

C360 CRM system was implemented between February – April 2019.   

 

Whilst the core product includes a ‘keeping the customer informed’ feature in terms 

of emails sent automatically following service request updates by officers; in house 

developments have enhance the product by enabling bespoke automated weekly 

reports to be emailed to Councillors and CT&CC’s.  

 

The automation of this system, not only provides an end to end user process (from 

frontline services to back office fulfilment) for dealing with service requests but has 

also improved the customer experience by reducing the need for customers to 

contact the council for updates. Further efficiencies have been achieved by reduced 

transactional costs as the system addresses ‘latent demand’ in terms of those 

customer who already have a propensity to self-serve  

 

A timeline of the milestones and achievements are as follows:  

 

2019 Action  Outcome  

April  Completion of the 6 week phased ‘go 

live’ approach 

58 service request forms launched  

Page 48



 
 

May  Bespoke weekly service request reports 

created for all Councillors & CT&CC’s 

Emailed automatically and include 

details of the original enquiry and 

officer updates  

July  Your Voice module launched 

(compliment, complaints & feedback 

policy)  

This is now an ‘end to end’ C360 

process 

August  Officer notes included in all email 

notifications sent to customers, 

Keeping customer informed as to 

action taken in response & to 

complete their request  

September  General Enquiry forms for all services 

enquiries launched  

Sent direct to services avoiding the 

need to triage email enquiries not 

yet on C360   

November  Lesson Learnt / post implementation 

review workshops held with services  

Feedback used to create and 

deliver change requests to improve 

C360 process flows. 

December  Performance reports created in 

response to service requests    

To inform performance indicator 

reports / indicators  

2020   

February  Customer self-serve on-line account 

(Customer Portal) launched 

Available to any customer who 

registers online  

 Attend all MAG meetings to provide 

update 

 

 Formal Councillor training delivered 2 x 2hr sessions – 7 attendees  

March  Formal Councillor ‘drop in’ C360 

sessions scheduled  

4 x 1hr session schedule each week 

in March to follow Councillor led 

meetings  

April  Informal ‘drop in’ C360 sessions planned 

County wide 

4 x 1hr weekly sessions to be 

arranged at different locations 

through Denbighshire  

 

Future work: 

 To work with services to improve customer notes/feedback 

 Develop more service request forms to achieve further efficiencies through reduced 

transactional costs.   

 Monitor performance and work with services to achieve key indicators / measures.  

Page 49



 
 

 

5. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate 

Priorities? 

5.1 The C360 CRM directly contributes to the corporate plan: Working together for 

the future of Denbighshire; and its emerging priorities. 

6. What will it cost and how will it affect other services? 

6.1  Information provided as part of the original business case.  

7. What are the main conclusions of the Well-being Impact 

Assessment? 

7.1  This was submitted for info and considered as part of the original business case. 

8. What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny 

and others? 

8.1. Consultations were carried out as part of the original business case.  

9. Chief Finance Officer Statement 

9.1  This was provided as part of the original business case.  

10. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to 

reduce them? 

10.1. Considered as part of the original business case.  

11. Power to make the decision 

11.1. Sections 7.3 and 7.4.2(b) of the Council’s Constitution outlines the Committee’s 

remit and powers with respect of Services’ performance. 

Page 50



 

Report to Performance Scrutiny Committee 

Date of meeting 19 March 2020 

Lead Member/Officer Councillor Tony Thomas (Lead Member for Housing & 

Communities)/Angela Loftus (Strategic Planning & Housing 

Manager) 

Report author Sue Lewis (Senior Officer:  Strategic Planning & Housing) 

Title Draft Housing and Homelessness Strategy – progress 

update 

1. What is the report about? 

1.1. The Housing Strategy is being reviewed and revised to form a new Housing and 

Homelessness Strategy for the County. The purpose of the report is to provide 

Scrutiny with an update on the progress made and an opportunity to contribute 

to the draft Strategy. 

1.2. Ensuring that everyone is supported to live in homes that meet their needs is a 

key corporate priority and the development of a revised up to date Housing and 

Homelessness Strategy will provide a framework for all relevant Council functions 

to successfully address the priority. The Housing and Homelessness Strategy will 

provide a clear statement of the Council’s vision and aims for housing in the 

County for the next 5 years. 

2. What is the reason for making this report? 

2.1. This report has been prepared to update Scrutiny Committee on progress in 

developing the revised Housing and Homelessness Strategy. 

3. What are the Recommendations? 

3.1. That Scrutiny considers the contents of the report and provides feedback to 

inform the development of the draft Housing and Homelessness Strategy.  

Page 51

Agenda Item 7



 
 

4. Report details 

4.1 Denbighshire’s Housing Strategy was approved by Council on 1st December 2015 

and sets out the Council’s vision and aims for housing in the County for a five year 

period.  Importantly it assists in achieving a Corporate Plan priority by providing a 

framework and action plan for delivery (through working with partners) of all 

Council housing related functions (private & public).  The Strategy also sits 

alongside the Local Development Plan.  The current Strategy identifies 5 “Themes” 

to target priority areas for action: 

 More homes to meet local need and demand; 

 Creating a supply of affordable homes; 

 Ensuring safe and healthy homes; 

 Homes and support for vulnerable people; 

 Promoting and supporting communities. 

 

4.2   The existing Housing Strategy had a “steering group” made up of Lead Members, 

Heads of Service, Managers and Officers with a clear action plan and monitoring 

mechanisms. The Housing Strategy is accompanied by a detailed Action Plan 

prioritising actions which would have the greatest impact whilst also being realistic 

about what could be delivered with limited resources.  Since adoption in 2015, the 

Housing Strategy has made significant progress with the majority of actions being 

completed and embedded into operational practices. Appendix A details the 

progress made across all 5 themes and here are some of the highlights: 

- 302 affordable homes provided since 2015/16 (excluding 2019/20); 

- Commencement of Council House development programme (40 new 

homes on site in 2020)  

- Development of an Empty Homes Delivery Plan; 

- Development of the Local Housing Market Assessment; 

- Housing Prospectus produced to promote potential development sites; 

- Production of Neighbourhood Plans through a community development 

approach; 

- A Denbighshire Housing tenant won a Chartered Institute of Housing Cymru 

award for work in her community; 

- Implementation of a Common Housing Register (SARTH); 

Page 52



 
 

- Implementation of Affordable Housing Register Partnership (Tai Teg); 

- Provision of additional Extra Care housing at Awel Y Dyffryn is due for 

completion in early 2021 and Llys Awelon Phase 2 will start this year;  

- Housing First pilot commenced – offering intensive support to complex 

cases: 

- The Homelessness Service refocused their approach through Prevention, 

Duty and Move-on teams: 

- A Homelessness Strategy was developed and discussed at Partnerships 

Scrutiny Committee on 11th July 2019. 

 

4.3 The Strategic Housing and Homelessness Group was recently set up to develop 

a more coordinated approach.  This group agreed to amalgamate the Housing 

Strategy and Homelessness Strategies into one Housing and Homelessness 

Strategy and will steer the development of the revised Strategy.  It is important to 

note that there will not be a completely new Strategy; it will be an update of the 

existing strategies. The Group is jointly chaired by Councillor Tony Thomas (Lead 

Member for Housing and Communities) and Councillor Bobby Feeley (Lead 

Member for Well-being and Independence).  Membership of the Group comprises 

those Lead Members with responsibility for an area of housing within their 

portfolios, relevant Heads of Service and the Strategic Planning & Housing 

Manager.  Appendix B provides the Terms of reference for the Strategic Housing 

and Homelessness Group. The advantages of this approach are that it is 

coordinated, provides shared problem solving, effective communication and more 

opportunities from closer cross departmental working. 

 

4.4 The immediate priority is to develop a corporate approach to tackling 

homelessness because of current issues, with not enough suitable emergency and 

temporary accommodation plus over reliance on Bed & Breakfast/Hotel 

accommodation and extended stays in emergency accommodation.   

 

4.5 It is proposed to amend the title of the Housing Strategy to the ‘Housing and 

Homelessness Strategy’ so that it reflects the importance of tackling homelessness 

and ensures that the strategic framework addresses homelessness.  The Strategy 

will be the vehicle for agreeing homelessness priorities and monitoring progress 

Page 53



 
 

against them.  This will enable improved integration and corporate ownership of 

work on homelessness.  

 

4.6 Progress on the Strategy so far has included reports to the Young People and 

Housing Programme Board (27th November 2020), meetings of the Strategic 

Housing and Homelessness group; and a Councillor Workshop held on 15th 

January 2020 (key outcomes are detailed in Appendix C).  This involved 

Councillors participating in workshops on the themes, outcomes and suggesting a 

range of potential new actions. 

 

4.7 A review of good practice and updated statistical information has been undertaken 

which will inform the emerging draft Strategy.  A new action plan to sit alongside 

the strategy is also being developed. Appendix D contains the proposed outline 

for the draft Housing and Homelessness Strategy.  The proposal is to retain 5 key 

themes, with the addition of ‘Preventing and addressing Homelessness’ as 

separate theme, to ensure that it is targeted as a priority. It is also proposed to 

merge the existing themes of ‘Homes and support for vulnerable people’ and 

‘Promoting and supporting communities’ to form the theme ‘Supporting people and 

sustainable communities’. 

 

4.8 The revised strategy will reference and seek to address a range of additional 

issues in response to housing agenda changes since 2015, including: 

- Fully integrate current Corporate Plan priorities (adopted after the Housing 

Strategy); 

- Housing Revenue Account accommodation project for homelessness; 

- Young people housing options; 

- Mental health issues & dementia issues; 

- Welsh Index of Multiple Deprivation (2019); 

- Climate and ecological change; 

- Changes to the Welsh Housing Quality Standards for Council and 

Registered Social Landlord properties – with increased decarbonisation 

focus expected in 2021. 

What happens next? 

Page 54



 
 

4.9   Discussions with key staff, including relevant Heads of Service from departments 

across Denbighshire County Council and engagement with key partners, including 

Registered Social Landlords are currently underway, with the aim of informing the 

emerging Housing & Homelessness Strategy. Recommendations from this Scrutiny 

Committee will be reported back to the Strategic Housing & Homelessness Group.  

Approval for the final draft Housing and Homelessness Strategy will be sought from 

Council later this year. 

5. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate 
Priorities? 

5.1   The themes of the Housing Strategy detailed in 4.1 contribute to the following 

Corporate priorities - housing, environment, young people and resilient 

communities.  

6. What are the main conclusions of the Well-being Impact 
Assessment? 

6.1. A Well-being Impact Assessment will be undertaken when the Housing and 

Homelessness Strategy is fully drafted. 

7. What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny 
and others? 

7.1 Currently the Housing and Homelessness Strategy is being drafted and a 

range of the consultation events have and are being organised: 

 

- Corporate Executive Team – 24th June 2019 

- Young People and Housing Programme Board – 27th November 2020 

- Councillor Workshop – 15th January 2020 (key outcomes are detailed in 

Appendix C); 

- Programme of consultation across Denbighshire County Councils 

committees – this Scrutiny, Cabinet. Cabinet Briefing and Full Council; 

- Discussions with key staff from departments across the Denbighshire 

County Council; 

-  Feedback from key partners including Registered Social Landlords. 

Page 55



 
 

8. Chief Finance Officer Statement 

8.1  The full cost implications of specific proposals that are developed as part of the 

Strategy will have to be assessed to ensure they are affordable and sustainable. 

9. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to 
reduce them? 

9.1. Ensuring that people are supported to live in homes that meet their needs is a 

key priority for the Council.  A range of mechanisms are in place to monitor 

progress including this report.  

10. Power to make the Decision 

 10.1   Local Government Act 2000, Housing Act 1985 (S8), Housing Act 2004 (S8), 

Local Government Act 2003 (S87), Housing (Wales) Act 2014 

 10.2 Scrutiny’s powers with regards to policy review and development are detailed in 

Section 7.4 of the Council’s Constitution. 

Page 56



Appendix A - Strategic Housing and Homelessness Group  

Terms of Reference   September 2019 

 
Context 
 
The Housing Strategy and associated action plan is the corporate document that pulls all 
things “housing” into a single coherent strategy.  
 
The Housing Strategy was adopted by Full Council on 1st December 2015, and provides a clear 
statement of the Council’s vision and aims for all housing related matters across the County 
for a five year period.  The current Housing Strategy therefore ends in December 2020 and is 
due to be reviewed/renewed. 
 
The Housing Strategy is produced, coordinated and led by Planning & Public Protection.  The 
operational responsibilities for delivering a range of housing issues contained within the 
Housing Strategy are delivered via the relevant Services e.g. Local Authority Social Housing is 
delivered and managed by Facilities Assets & Housing Service.  Addressing Homelessness is 
delivered and managed by Community Support Services. 
 
Community Support Services have led on the production of the Homelessness Strategy and 
associated Action Plan.  To some degree the approach to homelessness has become slightly 
separated from the Housing Strategy. 
 
Homelessness however is a corporate issue best addressed through effective partnership 
working across all relevant DCC Services and partners organisations. The Housing Strategy will 
provide the strategic framework for addressing homelessness, and will be the vehicle for 
agreeing homelessness priorities and monitoring progress against them. This will enable 
better integration and provide more corporate ownership to the work on homelessness.  
 
Role and Purpose  
 

 The prime role of the Strategic Housing & Homelessness Group is to enable a more 
corporate more strategic/corporate approach to Homelessness and the review of the 
Housing Strategy.  The Housing Strategy and Homelessness Action Plans are currently 
being reviewed and updated as necessary. The Group will monitor and review 
progress on the Housing and Homelessness Strategy and Action Plan. 
 

 The Group will monitor and review progress on the delivery of identified actions once 
the new action plan has been established with regular progress reports to Scrutiny 
and other committees as necessary. 

 

 The Group will review the Programme Development Plan (PDP) for the projected 
spending of Social Housing Grant. Regular updates on the Council’s development/ 
acquisition programme will be provided.  
 

Page 57



 The Group will meet every 2 months and the frequency of meetings will be reviewed 
after a year has elapsed.   
 

 Agendas and any accompanying papers will be circulated to the Group one week prior 
to the meeting.  

 

 Meeting notes will be produced for each Group meeting and distributed to the group. 
Notes will focus on action points going forward.   

 
Membership 
 

One section of the agenda will discuss broad Housing Strategy priorities such as empty homes, 
affordable housing supply, SARTH etc.  This will be chaired by Councillor Tony Thomas as the 
Lead Member for Housing, Regeneration and the Environment.   
 
The other section of the meeting will specifically discuss issues in terms of Homelessness and 
be chaired by Councillor Bobby Feeley – Lead Member for Well-being and Independence. 
 

Membership of the Group will comprise those Lead Members with responsibility for an area 
of housing within their portfolios, relevant Heads of Service and the Strategic Planning & 
Housing Manager:  
 

The attendees for the group are: 
 

Councillor Tony Thomas – Cabinet Lead Member for Housing & Communities (Chair 
for the Housing Strategy part of the meeting) 
Council Bobby Feeley – Cabinet Lead Member for Well-being and Independence (Chair 
for the Homelessness part of the meeting) 
Councillor Julian Thompson-Hill (Deputy Leader & Cabinet Lead Member for Finance, 
Performance and Strategic Assets 
Councillor Mark Young – Cabinet Lead Member for Planning, Public Protection and  
Safer Communities 
Councillor Brian Blakely – Homelessness champion 
Graham Boase – Corporate Director: Economy and Public Realm 
Emlyn Jones – Head of Planning and Public Protection 
Phil Gilroy – Head of Community Support Services 
Liz Grieve – Head of Customers, Communications and Marketing 
Paul Barnes – Business Support Manager 
Ann Lloyd – Principal Manager – Support Services 
Abbe Harvey – Service Manager – Community and Business Services 
Angela Loftus – Strategic Planning and Housing Manager 
Gareth Roberts – Built Environment and Public Protection Manager 
Geoff Davies – Lead Officer (Customers, Communications and Marketing) 
Mark Dixon – Housing Development Manager 
Nicola Kneale – Strategic Planning Team Manager 
Diana Dewhurst – Practice Leader, Education 
Matthew Jones – Public Relations and Communications Officer 
Jane Abbott/Sue Lewis – Strategic Planning and Housing 

Page 58



Appendix B 
 

  

Denbighshire County Council 

Denbighshire’s Housing 

Strategy 
Action Plan Update February 2020 

P
age 59



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Theme Title Reference Action Action 
RAG 

Update Lead Member / 
Head of Service 

Denbighshire’s Housing Strategy: Action Plan Update 

 

Introduction 

 The Housing Strategy and accompanying Action Plan were adopted 

by the Council on 1st December 2015 and are an amalgamation of all 

of our actions concerned with housing and housing related support. 

As a result the implementation of the Strategy is being undertaken 

by several different departments, in many instances working with 

partner organisations.  

The relevant actions have been included in each service business 

plan as appropriate and are monitored by the relevant Lead 

Members and Heads of Service through the Housing & 

Homelessness Strategy Delivery Group, jointly chaired by Lead 

Member Cllr Tony Thomas and Cllr Bobby Feeley.  The Housing & 

Homelessness Strategy is based around 5 key themes, and the 

Action Plan is structured around these themes, setting out the key 

actions required to deliver the desired outcomes for each key 

theme: 

1. More homes to meet local need and demand 
2. Creating a supply of affordable homes 
3. Ensuring safe and healthy homes 
4. Homes and support for vulnerable people 
5. Promoting and supporting communities 

 

 

The tables on the following pages set out progress updates on all the actions 

in the Action Plan, with the status illustrated as below. 

Key: Action status   

Action delivery on course 
  

Action delivery has minor slippage 
  

Action delivery has major issues  - unlikely 
to be met in target date 

  

Action completed 
  

Action completed and embedded as 
‘Business as usual’ activity 

  

 

 

 

P
age 60



More homes to 
meet local need 
& demand 
 

1.01 Develop site development briefs 
for key development sites 
allocated for housing in the LDP 
 

 Site Development brief programme is completed 
 

Mark Young  
Emlyn Jones 

More homes to 
meet local need 
& demand 

1.02 Develop appropriate 
Supplementary Planning 
Guidance  
 

 All SPG’s have been completed and adopted Mark Young  
Emlyn Jones 

More homes to 
meet local need 
& demand 

1.03 To develop a sites prospectus to 
promote allocated housing sites 
across the county.                                  
Publicise the prospectus 
 

 Prospectus developed and issued to developers & RSL's via an email 
with an http link, letter and questionnaire.  Positive feedback received. 
 

Mark Young  
Julian 
Thompson-Hill  
Emlyn Jones 

More homes to 
meet local need 
& demand 

1.04 Update Local Housing Market 
Assessment incorporating 
housing need and demand data. 
Current assessment was 
completed in 2015. 
 

 Development of new LHMA completed and published on DCC 
Corporate website July 2019  

Tony Thomas 
Emlyn Jones 

More homes to 
meet local need 
& demand 

1.05 Review LDP housing allocations  
and policies as part of statutory 
LDP Review 
 

 Replacement LDP Delivery Agreement approved, Call for Sites exercise 
open from August 2018 – November 2018.  Consultation on Preferred 
Strategy and Candidate Sites Register completed  Autumn 2019.   
Further consultation on additional sites currently underway until March 
2020.   

Mark Young  
Emlyn Jones 

More homes to 
meet local need 
& demand 

1.06 Investigate use of reduced 
commencement period 
conditions on planning 
permissions (i.e. shorter than 
current standard requiring 
development to start within 5 
years).  
 

 This is being implemented on sites where there have been issues 
previously, and for any applications for residential development which 
are not in line with LDP policy (i.e. on sites which are not allocated or 
outside development boundaries).  Planning conditions have to be 
reasonable, so can't set a reduced commencement period for every 
application.  
Landowners contacted through work on the replacement LDP. All sites 
to be reviewed as part of the candidate sites appraisal for the new LDP.  

Mark Young  
Emlyn Jones 

More homes to 
meet local need 
& demand 

1.07 Bring forward development on 
sites with unimplemented 
planning permission through a 
clear programme of action 
 

 All sites have been reviewed and landowners contacted as part of LDP 
Review. All sites to be reviewed as part of the candidate sites appraisal 
for the new LDP. Date amended to coincide with LDP review. 
 

Mark Young  
Emlyn Jones 

P
age 61



More homes to 
meet local need 
& demand 

1.08 To develop an Infrastructure 
Plan for Denbighshire 
 

 Infrastructure Plan will be further developed as part of the work on the 
replacement LDP and site assessments. A continuous review process 
required for this. 
 

Mark Young  
Emlyn Jones 

More homes to 
meet local need 
& demand 

1.09 Develop the Council’s Empty 
Homes Delivery Plan, 
investigate innovative 
mechanisms for bringing empty 
homes back into use and work 
with partners to develop new 
initiatives. 
 

 Draft Empty Homes Delivery Plan approved by Housing Strategy 
Monitoring Group & Empty Homes Project Group. The Delivery Plan has 
been approved under the Lead Member Delegated Decision process 
(March 2019).  Delivery Plan to be progressed as part of work on the 
Corporate Plan priorities, though the Younger People and Housing 
Programme Board.   
 

Tony Thomas 
Emlyn Jones 

More homes to 
meet local need 
& demand 

1.10 Undertake a Gypsy & Traveller 
accommodation needs 
assessment.                                      
 

 Accommodation assessment completed and final report agreed by 
Cabinet 23/1/17 and submitted to WG. Assessment concludes a need 
for a residential site and a need for a transit site. Site search and site 
assessment completed. Planning application submitted for permanent 
site; identification of possible transit site to be progressed through LDP 
process.  
New G & T Assessment has just been commissioned as part of the 
background evidence for the LDP as it has been decided to pursue the 
allocation of a transit site through the LDP 
 

Mark Young 
Emlyn Jones 
 

More homes to 
meet local need 
& demand 
 

1.11 Remove the requirement for 
rural buildings to be converted 
to affordable housing (after 
economic use is proved 
unfeasible), in preference for 
market housing. 
Increase access to training 
opportunities and employment  
for local people in the 
construction / housebuilding 
sector, through developing 
planning policy to encourage 
this through development  
 

 SPG amended to require economic & affordable uses to be explored, if 
there is no interest/feasibility following this, the unit may be sold on 
the open market for residential use. LDP policy will be reviewed as part 
of the LDP Review.  
 

Mark Young  
Emlyn Jones 
 

P
age 62



More homes to 
meet local need 
& demand 
 

1.12 Increase access to training 
opportunities and employment  
for local people in the 
construction / housebuilding 
sector, through developing 
planning policy to encourage 
this through development  
 

 SPG Planning Obligations adopted by Planning Committee includes 
requirements for training & employment on development sites through 
the planning process.   
 

Mark Young  
Emlyn Jones 
 

More homes to 
meet local need 
& demand 
 

1.13 Ensuring mix of appropriate 
housing to meet local needs, 
including development of good 
quality intermediate and 
market rented homes. 
Implement regular case 
conferences for housing 
proposals.  
 

 Strategic evidence is provided on all relevant planning applications with 
regards to housing mix. Also case conferences are regularly held to 
discuss applications prior to being determined to ensure consistency 
and adherence to policies.  

Mark Young 
Emlyn Jones 
 

Creating a 
supply of 
affordable 
homes 
 

2.01 Establish and implement an 
affordable housing delivery / 
investment programme to 
enable resources to be targeted 
to priority sites and actions 
 

 Denbigh & Rhyl prioritised, all land in the area evaluated and 
discussions held with MAGs. Development Programme Executive Group 
established. Affordable Housing programme – the programme has been 
developed pulling together Planning Application data, affordable 
housing and Council schemes.  As part of the Welsh PACT with WLGA 
draft projections have been developed for years 2016-2021. 
 

Tony Thomas 
Julian 
Thompson-Hill  
Emlyn Jones 
Liz Grieve 
 

Creating a 
supply of 
affordable 
homes 
 

2.02 Review both Council and HRA 
landholdings to determine 
suitability and availability for 
affordable housing 
development and establish a 
clear programme for delivery 
 

 Sites in Rhyl and Denbigh have been secured for future development 
appraisal and works are ongoing in respect of this.  
Discussions held with all MAGs regarding key issues for Locality Plans & 
further work undertaken to complete these. Development Programme 
Executive Group has been established to review the studies and 
progress against the programme. Updates are being delivered to all 
MAGs. 
 

Julian 
Thompson-Hill  
Liz Grieve 
 

Creating a 
supply of 
affordable 
homes 
 

2.03 Following a review of HRA 
landholdings, investigate selling 
HRA assets in areas where there 
is little or no housing need. 
Capital receipts to be used to 
contribute to the delivery of 

 The locality plans currently developed identify needs and opportunities, 
which have now been fed into the Asset Management & disposal 
process.  

Julian 
Thompson-Hill  
Liz Grieve 
 

P
age 63



affordable housing in areas of 
identified need. 
 

Creating a 
supply of 
affordable 
homes 
 

2.04 Investigate developing a council 
protocol for the disposal of 
Council land and property 
assets to ensure they are first 
offered to HRA , then if not 
required by the HRA to sell at 
below market value to 
maximise affordable housing 
delivery, only if not required for 
affordable housing it should be 
offered to open market at full 
market value 
 

 Strategic direction is outlined in the Service Asset Management Plan 
and the Corporate Asset Management plan. The proposal for a protocol 
was discussed at Asset Management Group in July 2016, where 
concerns were raised around scope and impact of the protocol, 
alignment with current planning policy and duty to obtain best value.  
The Asset Management Process ensures that any surplus sites are 
offered to Housing for development of social/affordable housing based 
on identified needs prior to being considered for disposal on the open 
market.  Should the sites brought forward not be required, then market 
forces linked to existing planning obligations to provide affordable 
homes will dictate reduced market value, in which case further 
undervalue would be difficult to justify in line with the General 
Disposals Consent Order (Wales) 2003 (based on needs and outcome). 
The process is  now embedded in the disposal process via the Asset 
Management Group(25/11/16)  
 

Julian 
Thompson-Hill  
Liz Grieve 
 

Creating a 
supply of 
affordable 
homes 
 

2.05 Work with other public sector 
agencies  (including BCUHB, 
WG, police etc) to review other 
public landholdings, to 
determine suitability and 
availability for affordable 
housing development    
 

 Working with partners to establish suitability for housing development 
on sites is established in principle. Each development is assessed on its 
own merits, with partners being chosen accordingly. This action is now 
being progressed through the Social Housing Locality Plans project.   
 

Tony Thomas 
 Julian 
Thompson-Hill 
Liz Grieve 
 

Creating a 
supply of 
affordable 
homes 
 

2.06 To maximise Housing Revenue 
Account (HRA) funding to 
deliver more affordable housing 
and establish a development 
fund within the HRA 
 

 30 year HRA business plan - Properties acquired for provision of new 
homes in Queen Street, Rhyl. Development options for sites initial 
tranche of sites and premises in preparation. Development options for 
43-61 Queen Street and 2-16 Aquarium Street in Rhyl endorsed by 
Housing Programme Executive Group Design, Construction & 
Maintenance Team commissioned to prepare development options for 
premises at 2-16 Aquarium Street, Rhyl. Options being appraised for 
several other development sites.  Actions being taken forward under 
2.21 

Tony Thomas 
Julian 
Thompson-Hill  
Liz Grieve.  
 

P
age 64



Creating a 
supply of 
affordable 
homes 
 

2.07 Establish a targeted programme 
for spending affordable housing  
commuted sums , including the 
possibility of pooling to form a 
central fund 
 

 Affordable Homes Commuted Sums Policy approved through Lead 
Member Delegated Decision process in March 2018.  

Mark Young  
Emlyn Jones 
 

Creating a 
supply of 
affordable 
homes 
 

2.08 To maximise use of Social 
Housing Grant, Housing Finance 
Grant and other  funding 
available to deliver additional 
affordable housing. 
 

 2015/16 - Programme Delivery Plan full spend of just over £1m 
achieved with a slippage money of £1.81m awarded from WG at 
year end to existing schemes in the programme (2015/16)  - 55 
affordable homes delivered 2015/16. 
2016/17 -   Programme Delivery Plan full spend and new funding 
such as HFG2 available from April. Slippage money of £1.14m - 67 
affordable homes provided in 2016-17. 
2017-18 – Fully programmed Programme Delivery Plan developed 
66 affordable homes delivered. 3 schemes awarded funding in 
‘Land for Housing’ stream (Grwp Cynefin, Wales & West and 
Cartrefi Cymunedol Gwynedd). DCC was successful in attracting an 
additional £914,522 in additional funding for affordable housing at 
the end of 2017/18. - 66 affordable homes provided.  
2018/19 – Full spend of Social Housing Grant (SHG) programme 
(DCC & Clwyd Alyn successful in gaining IHF for Tan Y Sgubor, 
Denbigh, Bodnant, Prestatyn & Llanbedr DC respectively) – 36 
affordable homes provided.   
2019/20 – Full spend of Social Housing Grant (SHG) programme; 
additional £1.3m awarded to DCC in July 2019. Clwyd Alyn 
successful in IHF funding for Glasdir, Ruthin subject to planning 
permission being granted – 48 affordable homes to be provided (as 
of Feb 2020) 

 

Tony Thomas 
Emlyn Jones 
 

Creating a 
supply of 
affordable 
homes 
 

2.09 To fully investigate utilising a 
wider range of affordable 
housing funding & delivery 
mechanisms, e.g. joint venture,  
establishing a housing delivery 
company 
 

 Housing Development Manager appointed.  Strategic Planning & 
Housing Team work closely with the post-holder to develop a delivery & 
investment programme using a wider range of funding and delivery 
mechanisms leading to a range of housing – encouraging more joint 
projects with the Council and RSLs in terms of land and the purchase of 
existing properties.   Options are evaluated on a site by site basis as part 
of the background work in financially appraising a prospective site.  
 

Tony Thomas 
Julian 
Thompson-Hill  
Liz Grieve 
 

P
age 65



Creating a 
supply of 
affordable 
homes 
 

2.10 Practical completion of first new 
homes through Housing 
Development Programme 

 Business plan seen and approved by Lead Member. Plan submitted to 
WG. There have been 9 purchases of former Council housing dwellings, 
with a further 3 expected completions in early 2019/20 – a further 3 are 
at the negotiation stage. The refurbishment of 40, Brighton Road from a 
poor quality HMO into 3 self-contained apartments was completed by 
Dec 2019. 
Two applications for Innovative Housing Funding from WG have been 
successful, with funding agreed for Passivhaus apartments in Prestatyn 
and modular build Passivhaus in Denbigh.  
 

Tony Thomas Liz 
Grieve 
 

Creating a 
supply of 
affordable 
homes 
 

2.11 Develop a standard Section 106 
legal agreement / clauses for 
securing affordable housing 
through planning applications. 
Ensure that this meets 
mortgage providers 
requirements 
 

 S106 agreements have been looked into extensively in conjunction with 
the legal department and a standard version is difficult to agree on, 
however we are currently developing standard clauses for inclusion in 
S106 agreements. More affordable housing development is being 
secured currently through using the Unilateral Undertaking route. This 
helps progress development more quickly. Legal team currently 
producing final drafts of standard clauses. Mortgage providers will be 
consulted by the Strategic Planning & Housing Team in conjunction with 
Legal Services once final draft clauses have been produced. Good 
practice guidance has been produced by mortgage providers and this 
will form the starting point. Draft clauses developed but more work is 
needed especially on the Affordable Housing sections. Following the 
retirement of the team leader, this work will need to be reallocated.  
 
Feb 2019 - An internal audit of the S106 process meant this work was 
put on hold, the final report of the audit has now been completed and 
recommendations going forward are currently being evaluated.  
 

Mark Young  
Emlyn Jones 
 

Creating a 
supply of 
affordable 
homes 
 

2.12 Test a range of methods for 
calculating financial 
contributions towards 
affordable housing, with the 
aim of reducing the number of 
calculations currently used.  
 

 Links into LDP Review: see Action ref 1.05 above 
Delivery Agreement approved, Call for Sites exercise open from August 
2018 – November 2018. Consultation on Preferred Strategy and 
Candidate Sites Register completed  Autumn 2019. Further consultation 
on additional sites currently underway until March 2020 Work is now 
being undertaken by the district valuer to assess viability as part of the 
replacement LDP process.  

Mark Young  
Emlyn Jones 
 

Creating a 
supply of 

2.13 Involvement of the Council’s 
Finance, Assets & Housing 
Service in assessing viability of 

 Finance, Housing & Assets Service are involved with assessment of 
viability of planning proposals on an ad hoc basis. 

Mark Young  
Emlyn Jones 
 

P
age 66



affordable 
homes 
 

planning proposals  and 
involvement in negotiations 
with developer and applicants  
 

Creating a 
supply of 
affordable 
homes 
 

2.14 Introduce a mechanism to 
secure financial contributions 
for affordable housing following 
scheme completion, where 
viability has improved beyond 
that originally projected 
(‘clawback’).   
 

 Legal opinion obtained on this matter has advised that this is not 
possible 
 

Mark Young  
Emlyn Jones 
 

Creating a 
supply of 
affordable 
homes 
 

2.15 Test a range of approaches to 
calculating the value of 
affordable properties, to ensure 
this is set at an appropriate 
level.   
 

 Links to LDP Review -see Action ref 1.05 above 
 
Delivery Agreement approved, Call for Sites exercise open from August 
2018 – November 2018. Consultation on Preferred Strategy and 
Candidate Sites Register completed  Autumn 2019.  Work is now being 
undertaken by the district valuer on affordable housing and this will be 
progressed through the development of the Replacement LDP.  
 

Mark Young  
Emlyn Jones 
 

Creating a 
supply of 
affordable 
homes 
 

2.16 Review the current approach 
and thresholds for affordable 
housing requirements in LDP 
policies relating to affordable 
housing through the statutory 
LDP Review process (currently 
10% requirement but could be 
increased if viability justified a 
higher affordable housing 
contribution) 
 

 Links to LDP Review -see Action ref 1.05 above 
Delivery Agreement approved, Call for Sites exercise open from August 
2018 – November 2018.  Further consultation on additional sites 
currently underway until March 2020.  Consultation on Preferred 
Strategy and Candidate Sites Register completed  Autumn 2019.   Work 
is now being undertaken by the district valuer on affordable housing 
and will be progressed through the development of the Replacement 
LDP.  
 

Mark Young  
Emlyn Jones 
 

Creating a 
supply of 
affordable 
homes 
 

2.17 To ensure good partnership 
working with Registered Social 
Landlords 
 

 Programme Delivery Plan meetings (for the strategic allocation of Social 
Housing Grant -SHG) arranged in accordance with PDP submission 
timescales quarterly. Bi-annual update meetings have been held with 
RSL's individually from 2016 onwards, additional ad hoc meetings 
arranged with RSLs as necessary. Job shadowing with W&W developers 
to see how development process works within RSLs has been carried 
out July 2018. Homelessness will now be attending the strategic 

Tony Thomas 
Emlyn Jones 
 

P
age 67



management meetings held by Housing to facilitate closer working and 
enable more accommodation to be freed up to meet housing needs 
 

Creating a 
supply of 
affordable 
homes 
 

2.18 To identify a wider range of 
development partners to assist 
in increasing the supply of 
affordable housing 
 

 Cartrefi Conwy is now an RSL partner for DCC -approved by WG in May 
2016.  
Have worked extensively with NWH to develop a business case but due 
to internal pressures in their organisation at present they are not 
pursuing full zoning in Denbighshire.  
Business case for Cartrefi Cymunedol Gwynedd (now Adra) to be zoned 
within Denbighshire approved by WG on 30/1/18.  

Tony Thomas 
Emlyn Jones 
 

Creating a 
supply of 
affordable 
homes 
 

2.19 To increase applicants 
registered on the affordable 
housing register or equivalent.                   
Review current process for 
registration. 
 

 New website and updated registration process launched by Grŵp 
Cynefin in July 2018. The new process for registration is simpler and has 
been heavily advertised on social media, which produces the most 
effective engagement  
As of Feb 2020 there are 601 unique applicants with 336 applicants 
wanting Home Ownership options and 413 applicants wanting 
Intermediate Rental options (you can register for either or both).  
 

Tony Thomas 
Emlyn Jones 
 

Creating a 
supply of 
affordable 
homes 
 

2.20 To develop a  communications  
campaign to ensure successful 
affordable home schemes are 
fully promoted 
 

 Communications & Marketing team has produced a communications 
campaign for housing delivery including the promotion of successful 
affordable housing schemes & discussions ongoing with 
communications team.  
 
Plan developed with Corporate Communications to promote Tai Teg on 
Flexitime, office posters and to co-ordinate press releases with the RSLs 
& County Voice for developments. Links on the DCC website have been 
updated for the Tai Teg register.  
 

Tony Thomas 
Emlyn Jones 
 

Creating a 
supply of 
affordable 
homes 

2.21 Practical completion of first new 
homes through Housing 
Development Programme 

  Planning application submitted for Queen St, Rhyl,  Bodnant 
apartments, Tan Y Sgubor, Denbigh  
Prestatyn-  works required to underground culvert has delayed work on 
the construction of the new build social homes, commuted sums 
money for the Prestatyn area has been used to facilitate the culvert 
work required onsite The renovation of 40, Brighton Road is complete 
the 3 flats have been let on intermediate rent terms.   

 

Ensuring safe & 
healthy homes 
 

3.01 To ensure Council 
accommodation is maintained 

 March 2019 - Denbighshire housing met the WHQS in 2014 and are now 

classed as being within the WHQS Maintenance period. This means that the 
standard is currently being maintained as per the policy and in line with our 
stock condition information data. 

Tony Thomas  
Liz Grieve 
 

P
age 68



to meet the  Welsh Housing 
Quality Standard  
 

Various programmes of work to ensure the properties remain compliant are 
now being completed each year as part of our capital investment programme. 
Our current emphasis is mainly on external works including major external 
enveloping programmes, however a number of smaller kitchen and bathroom 
schemes are also being completed each year. Components are replaced based 
on their serviceable lifecycle, however are subject to a condition based survey 
prior to replacement. 
During 2019/20, a total of 230 properties will require upgrading to ensure the 
housing stock remains fully compliant. The planned works will see 
approximately 100 properties benefiting from internal improvements and 130 
properties receiving extensive external enveloping works. 

 
Ensuring safe & 
healthy homes 
 

3.02 Private rented sector stock 
condition/issue survey 
 

 Dec 2017 - Stock Condition Survey has been carried out by WG however 
the sampling exercise has been too small to make the data useful for 
DCC. It really just shows a small snapshot. Better information can be 
obtained from other data sources particularly EPC and this is the data 
that will be used going forward to target new energy efficiency work. . 
 

Tony Thomas 
Emlyn Jones 
 

Ensuring safe & 
healthy homes 
 

3.03 Support implementation & 
enforcement of Welsh 
Governments “Rent Smart’ 
scheme (Landlord Licensing 
Scheme), including a 
comprehensive database of all 
private landlords. 
 

 July 16 - Landlords are signposted to Cardiff as they administer the 
scheme for Wales. Concerns re enforcement of scheme have been 
raised with Directors of Public Protection Wales. Rent Smart Manager 
attended Landlord/tenant surgery.   
Rent Smart Wales (RSW) has been promoted through local newspapers 
& radio. Rent Smart Wales - Denbighshire has an excellent compliance 
rate with 7,676 properties currently registered.  As and when properties 
are identified as being unregistered, they are reported to RSW for 
enforcement. Links made with other DCC services i.e. housing benefit, 
homelessness to raise profile of Rent Smart Wales. 
 

Tony Thomas 
Emlyn Jones 
 

Ensuring safe & 
healthy homes 
 

3.04 To develop an Energy 
Conservation delivery plan and 
establish a database to 
prioritise those in fuel poverty 
 

 Energy Conservation projects are funding stream led but it also now 
feeds into the climate emergency work which is underway through the 
Council.  

Brian Jones 
Emlyn Jones 
 

P
age 69



Ensuring safe & 
healthy homes 
 

3.05 To develop a multi-agency 
private rented sector action 
plan & toolkit working with 
partners such as the Health 
Board to help to improve the 
standard of the poorest quality 
housing in the private rented 
sector.                                                                                
 

 Links to Rhyl Town Centre Plan & Vibrant & Viable Town Centres Plan.  
High profile enforcement for West End of Rhyl with overall conditions 
improving. Work on GIS Mapping has taken place recently allowing us 
to identify all Rent Smart Wales Registered properties that have and do 
not have EPC.  The data can also be used to identify rented properties 
with an EPC that are not RSW registered and these properties can then 
be targeted for enforcement. Collaborative project took place between 
Housing Enforcement and Built Environment on the Warm Homes 
Project in which 163 heating systems in some of the poorest energy 
efficient properties in Rhyl were installed (grant funded). 

Tony Thomas 
Emlyn Jones 
 

Ensuring safe & 
healthy homes 
 

3.06 Continue to implement 
mandatory HMO licensing & 
explore potential for future 
expansion of additional 
licensing schemes and 
introduction of selective 
licensing schemes 
 

 The mandatory and additional licensing scheme continues in Rhyl. 
Further work being done with other services to identify other HMO’s 
potentially requiring licensing, i.e. working with Housing Benefit.  
We currently have 90% of the eligible properties licenced in 
Denbighshire. The remaining 10% of unlicensed properties are either 
going through the licencing process (which also includes renewals), 
have been referred to Planning for investigation, or are being 
considered for formal action.  
Additional licensing scheme to be renewed in Rhyl and will be extended 
to include Denbigh and Llangollen.  

Tony Thomas 
Emlyn Jones 
 

Ensuring safe & 
healthy homes 
 

3.07 Use of planning and housing 
powers, including enforcement 
regarding new build and 
unauthorised HMOs & 
conversion to flats 
 

 Any HMOs that are identified as potentially being in breach of Planning 
because they are operating as a HMO are referred to Planning  to 
investigate before they are sent an application for either Additional or 
Mandatory HMO licensing.  
 

Mark Young  
Tony Thomas 
Emlyn Jones 
 

Ensuring safe & 
healthy homes 
 

3.08 Establish the extent to which 
holiday caravans are being used 
as permanent residences. 
Develop a regulatory procedure 
to take targeted action. 
 

 Caravan site information is now being shared and monitored across the 
authority. Regular reports to Scrutiny on the ongoing monitoring of the 
sites.   
 

Mark Young  
Emlyn Jones 
 

Ensuring safe & 
healthy homes 
 

3.09 Develop & engage with private 
rented sector landlords & 
tenants through alternative 
methods and routes. 
 

 Landlord Roadshow has been held in various towns across the County. 
Presentations have been given covering a variety of housing related 
topics e.g. Universal Credit, Cuckooing & County Lines, Rhyl Masterplan 
and Rent Smart Wales. DWP, Fire Service and Residential Landlords 
Association also regularly attend to provide advice to landlords.  

Tony Thomas  
Emlyn Jones 
 

P
age 70



Ensuring safe & 
healthy homes 
 

3.10 Improve fire safety in HMO's 
 

 Packs all issued to landlords along with a fire door measuring tool. 
Programme of fire safety inspections for licenced HMO’s underway. 

Tony Thomas 
Emlyn Jones 

Homes & 
support for 
vulnerable 
people 

4.01 To ensure additional extra care 
facilities are provided in 
Denbighshire & to maximise 
potential for specialist housing 
for vulnerable adults  
 

 Tenders for Middle Lane site Denbigh assessed with Grŵp Cynefin being 
the successful partner. The development is for 70 apartments, and an 
additional 4 units for people with learning disabilities, expected 
completion March 2021.  
Oct 2019: Plans for additional extra care units at Awelon, Ruthin have 
been submitted as part of the pre-application process to Planning.  

Bobby Feeley  
Phil Gilroy 
 

Homes & 
support for 
vulnerable 
people 

4.02 Review Supported Independent 
Living provision and demand 
 

 A new Supporting People Contract for SIL is in place since April 2016 
and management arrangements have been changed so that the SP 
Team Manager now has responsibility for the project.  The merger has 
taken place between SIL, Reablement, Health and Social Care Support.     

Bobby Feeley  
Phil Gilroy 
 

Homes & 
support for 
vulnerable 
people 

4.03 To finalise a homelessness 
strategy by December 2017, 
including ensuring that RSLs 
also provide for homeless 
people                                                                  
 

 Following completion of Homelessness Review, Homelessness Strategy 
developed and adopted by the Council in Dec 17 and an action plan has 
been developed to carry out the requirements. 
 
Housing & Homelessness Strategies are being monitored together by 
the Housing & Homelessness Strategy Delivery Group. Blending the two 
strategies will ensure that all departments with a 
housing/homelessness element contribute to achieving the Council’s 
vision and will ensure that there is no duplication of projects 

Bobby Feeley           
Phil Gilroy 
 

Homes & 
support for 
vulnerable 
people 

4.04 To provide better quality 
emergency accommodation for 
those who have been made 
homeless in the County.  
 

 Bespoke accommodation solutions are developed as needed with more 
complex clients. Long term emergency and temporary accommodation 
solutions are in development in conjunction with the Housing 
Department and Property Services. 
 

Bobby Feeley           
Phil Gilroy 
 

Homes & 
support for 
vulnerable 
people 

4.05 Provide good quality, well 
managed temporary 
accommodation solutions whilst 
housing needs are being 
assessed prior to permanent 
accommodation solutions being 
found. This includes options 
such as the Council providing it 
directly from its own housing 
stock 
 

 There has been a corporate multi-disciplinary working group set up and 
led by SP specifically looking at needs of homeless young people. Aim to 
have an integrated service to flexibly meet a range of needs. 
Landlord offer introduced to improve the quality and supply of suitable 
temporary accommodation.  Private Rented Sector pilot project is being 
embarked on with Conwy Council, which will provide temporary 
accommodation solutions.  
We continue to work closely with Community Housing and Grŵp 
Cynefin, both of whom are increasing the number of properties they 
provide to the Homelessness Prevention Team, across the County.  

Bobby Feeley           
Phil Gilroy 
 

P
age 71



We are also exploring options to secure alterative models of emergency 
accommodation across the County. We were successful in obtaining 
WG funding for a Housing First pilot in conjunction with Conwy. 
  

Homes & 
support for 
vulnerable 
people 

4.06 Develop and implement a 
Private Rented Sector (PRS) 
tenants accreditation scheme 
 

 We have established a PRS Tenant Accreditation Scheme. This is 
currently reliant upon SP providers doing the work with prospective 
tenants and results are patchy. Housing Solutions are now delivering 
"Renting Ready" training. This is an accredited course that is recognised 
across the UK. This has been developed by the Homeless Charity CRISIS.  
Secured WG funding to provide accredited training for staff and 
partners with a view to developing a workforce able to deliver training 
and ensure a consistent approach to homelessness.  

Bobby Feeley           
Phil Gilroy 
 

Homes & 
support for 
vulnerable 
people 

4.07 Investigate options on the 
formation of a Social Lettings 
Agency 
 

 Group has met three times. Good attendance, with a wide 
representation. A comprehensive report has now been prepared  
Its  purpose of is to provide a broad overview of the contribution a 
Social Lettings Agency could make to meeting housing need in 
Denbighshire.  
July 2017: Decision made not to pursue this option as it has proved 
unsuccessful. Now using only DCC Corporate Website.  Housing 
Solutions and Supporting People have now been integrated to create 
the Homelessness Prevention Team. 
October 2019 -Revisiting the option following the adoption of the 
Homelessness Strategy, the rise in homelessness and the need to 
source more affordable long term accommodation.  

Bobby Feeley           
Phil Gilroy 
 

Homes & 
support for 
vulnerable 
people 

4.08 Promote and develop the 
‘Denbighshire Housing’ website 
& ‘Let’s Help You’ online 
accommodation finder  
 

 This was launched and a complete overhaul of all Housing Options 
advice available through DCC websites undertaken. Completed March 
16. Take up of ‘Let's Help You’ is proved disappointingly slow. June 16 - 
Denbighshire Housing Website has been upgraded and linked with 
Community Support Services website.  
July 17 – now only using DCC Corporate website. Housing Solutions and 
Supporting People have now been integrated to create the 
Homelessness Prevention Team. 

Bobby Feeley           
Phil Gilroy 
 

Homes & 
support for 
vulnerable 
people 

4.09 Develop a portfolio of private 
rented sector landlords with 
good quality accommodation to 
assist people with private 
rented sector accommodation.  

 Enforcement now check each property sourced by Housing Solutions 
for Homelessness Prevention or Lease to ensure it is suitable, safe and 
healthy. Landlords are also checked. Protocol developed and 
progressed through Private Rented Sector multi-agency partnership 

Bobby Feeley           
Phil Gilroy 
 

P
age 72



Working with Public Protection 
to ensure that the 
accommodation meets at least 
the minimum standards set in 
Housing Hazards and Safety 
Rating Scheme (HHSRS) 
legislation & that landlords 
meet the “fit and proper” test 
 

Two staff are now dedicated to working directly with landlords to 
monitor that property conditions remain at the expected standards.   

Homes & 
support for 
vulnerable 
people 

4.10 To develop a pre-move 
programme for adults with 
complex disabilities to maximise 
successful placements 
 

 New operational procedures drafted and signed off 10th March 2016 at 
the Operational Housing Group.  
 

Bobby Feeley  
Phil Gilroy 
 

Homes & 
support for 
vulnerable 
people 

4.11 Implement the single access 
route to housing (SARTH) 
 

 May 16 - SARTH Allocations policy approved by Cabinet in January 2014 
Report being taken to Cabinet in June 2016. July 16 - Cabinet have 
approved recommendation to take a partnership approach so 
communication on May 16 - Negotiation around delivery of partnership 
to proceed in July 2016.   
Sept 2016: Implementation Phase to commence October 2016.  
Nov 16 - Full project plan and implementation on track.   
January 2017- revised timetable for implementation  
April 2017 - Implementation in progress and on track.  
July 2017 - SARTH fully implemented 
March 2019 – Council briefing in June to update on progress and 
Partnerships Scrutiny review in October.  
 

Tony Thomas    
Liz Grieve 
 

Homes & 
support for 
vulnerable 
people 

4.12 To monitor and respond to 
accommodation and support 
requirements for refugees 
 

 Families Resettled 
18 families now settled in Denbighshire since 2016. 2 families are now 
independent and have exited the support from British Red Cross.   They 
have been advised where they can get advice and support if required in 
future.  We are currently in discussions with our neighbouring Local 
Authorities around what support will be required moving forwards.   
The families have integrated well into their new surroundings, they are 

encouraged to volunteer within their community and to attend various 

community groups, where they can meet professional/third 

sector/voluntary agencies, including the police/PCOs and Denbighshire 

Bobby Feeley      
Phil Gilroy 
 

P
age 73



citizens. All families are registered with a GP and dentist/community 

dentist 

Future Family Acceptance 
The Home Office has advised that the scheme will cease to accept new 

refugees in February 2020 with the final arrival dates being 31/3/2020.   
 

Promoting and 
supporting 
communities 
 

5.01 To develop a Tenant 
Engagement Strategy for 
Council tenants 
 

 Programme of consultation events to be arranged. Denbighshire 
Tenants and Residents Federation aware of progress.  Outline plan for 
development of the strategy has been agreed. Programme of 
consultation events to be arranged. Lead Member consultation taken 
place. Draft strategy complete and to go out for consultation through a 
series of events arranged with the Tenants’ Federation.  Consultation 
complete draft strategy presented for approval. January 2019 – Final 
version now signed off by Tenant Federation 
 

Tony Thomas    
Liz Grieve 
 

Promoting and 
supporting 
communities 
 

5.02 Develop a strategic asset 
management plan for the 
Council’s housing stock  
 

 Stock condition surveys completed Dec 2017.  Existing Asset 
Management plan being utilised (2014 - 2021) - sent to Wales Audit 
Office as part of WHQS audit and to inform the development of the 
next Asset Management Plan. 
 

Tony Thomas    
Liz Grieve 
 

Promoting and 
supporting 
communities 
 

5.03 Implement environment toolkit 
to assist in improving the 
environment for our tenants 
 

 An Environmental policy has been developed to deliver the tool kit and 
wider approach to managing our neighbourhoods alongside the 
Community Development function.  

Tony Thomas    
Liz Grieve 
 

Promoting and 
supporting 
communities 
 

5.04 Develop a schedule to enhance 
open space/ play assets within 
Council stock 
 

 11 Priority areas were initially identified and all works have been 
completed including play equipment and landscape works. Further 
projects to enhance open spaces are in progress with more projects 
being considered.  Action now complete as the programme is in 
progress and group established to monitor progress and develop future 
schedule of work.  
 

Tony Thomas    
Liz Grieve 
 

Promoting and 
supporting 
communities 
 

5.05 To develop an apprenticeship 
scheme for property 
maintenance service  
 

 3 apprentices employed 2015/16. Additional 3 in 2016/17. Oct 2017 - 
Investigations and expressions of interest from other LA's and RSL's 
regarding joint working arrangements may affect the profile of the DLO 
going forward. 

Tony Thomas    
Liz Grieve 
 

Promoting and 
supporting 
communities 

5.06 Continue working with police, 
registered social landlords & 
other partners on focused 

 July 2016: Project on-going with Public Protection, Planning, RSLs, NW 
Police, Streetscene and Waste Teams, District Enforcement to ensure 
refuse, litter etc removed quickly, with enforcement action taken if 

Tony Thomas    
Emlyn Jones 
 

P
age 74



 neighbourhood management  in 
West Rhyl 
 

necessary. Good working arrangements in place with Environmental 
Services. On-going work educating tenants on fly tipping & anti-social 
behaviour. Still continuing with this project work attending regular 
meetings. Multi agency/service group being relaunched in Oct 2017, 
new terms of reference and chaired by Tony Ward.  
 
Focused activity on hotspot areas has seen reduction in issues. Changes 
have taken place to waste collection, households have been transferred 
from sack to bin collection to reduce street litter issues.  Cross service 
projects are currently been planned to address commercial waste from 
local businesses.  
 

Promoting and 
supporting 
communities 
 

5.07 Develop individual locality 
based neighbourhood plans for 
areas of Council stock 
 

 Local neighbourhood plans are being delivered by Community 
Development Co-ordinators. In Sept 2017 this was linked to 
development of Engagement Strategy and included in action plans.  
now business as usual as part of Community Housing business.  
 

Tony Thomas    
Liz Grieve 
 

 Page 75



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix C - Key notes from Councillors workshop on 15th January 2020 
 
Councillors undertook all five workshops on the five themes of the Housing Strategy 
(HS). 
 
The following fourteen Councillors attended the workshop session: 
 
Councillor Rhys Thomas 
Councillor Bobby Feeley 
Councillor Joe Welch 
Councillor Tony Thomas 
Councillor Arwel Roberts 
Councillor Emrys Wynne 
Councillor Merrick Lloyd-Davies 
Councillor Martin Holland 
Councillor Ellie Chard 
Councillor Barry Mellor 
Councillor Alan James 
Councillor Joan Butterfield 
Councillor Rachel Flynn 
Councillor Ann Davies 
 
Apologies – Councillor Hugh Irving 
 
Denbighshire County Council staff that attended were: 
 
Sean Marsh 
Gareth Roberts 
Judith Greenhalgh 
Emlyn Jones 
Graham Boase 
Liz Grieve 
Geoff Davies 
Jane Abbott 
Angela Loftus 
Sue Lewis 
Abbe Harvey 
 
 

The key outputs are listed below for each HS theme: 
 
Theme 1 – More homes to meet local need and demand 
 
Theme: Most groups were broadly happy with the theme and the wording.  One 
group suggested combining theme 1 and theme 2 together.  One group suggested 
adding tailored to various areas of Denbighshire. 
 
  

Page 77



Outcomes: 
 

- Most groups supported the outcomes – one group questioned prioritising 
Gypsies & Travellers 

 
 
Potential actions to include: 
 

 To build larger homes to give greater flexibility of use 
 Build smaller homes as per Local Housing Market Assessment 
 More action on empty homes (key actions mentioned by all groups) 
 Develop a hall of residence approach to shared housed for younger people 
 Empty was mentioned by all the groups – high priority for Councillors.  They 

are a wasted resource 
 Gypsy and travellers – about meeting the genuine need near facilities.  Not an 

easy solution 
 Tailored housing need approach – area specific 
 Affordability for local people is key 
 Low incomes generally in the County 
 Questioned the capacity of local builders to provide enough homes 
 Affordable definition – different tenures including rented (not just ownership 

options) 
 Historically low interest rates and housing is currently a good investment 
 Temporary accommodation for homeless people – more options and better 

quality 
 The importance of more types of move-on accommodation (Council should 

purchase more of these properties) 
 Older people – more housing options for them 
 Young people – more housing options for them 
 Use of evidence of housing need – Local Housing Market Assessment 
 3 bedroom Council house - should be converted into two flats  
 People with disabilities struggle to find move-on accommodation 
 More smaller properties including bungalows. More housing management 

moves to free up larger homes but moving tenants to smaller properties 
 Loneliness for all generations is a real issue 
 Bed blocking in hospital because homes are not suitable 
 Good neighbour approach – Wardens have been taken away 
 Range of different accommodation is needed 
 New build – services are a key consideration – doctors, education, etc. 
 Local Development Plan – remove allocated sites that have not come forward 

(have had sufficient time to bring them forward) 
 Apartment above the shops to aid the regeneration 
 Gypsies and Travellers need to be balanced with homelessness 
 Rural areas – decreasing numbers of Welsh speakers with new developments 
 Quality of housing is key – should be 2 bedroom minimum to provide more 

flexibility of use 
 General flexibility of properties – single then couple and then children (needs 

change) 
 Rhyl West – need to avoid 1 bedroom properties so previous mistakes are not 

repeated 

Page 78



 Gypsies & Travellers have unauthorised sites need – estimates are too low 
 Link between housing and employment 
 Partnerships with colleges – upskilling young people is key 

 
 
Theme 2: Creating a supply of affordable homes 
 
Theme: Should still be a separate theme (affordable homes) – The majority of 
participants in the workshop, still felt that affordable housing still warranted a 
separate focus, rather than being subsumed into theme one, although it was 
accepted that there was a lot of commonality between the themes.   
 
Outcomes:  

1. Improved supply of affordable housing of all types and tenure across the 
County 

2. Working with partners to maximise affordable housing development 
3. An increase in applicants registered on the affordable housing register 

 
It was recognised that good work had been achieved on all three of the outcomes, 
but 1 & 2 remained relevant and it was felt they should be retained. Outcome 3, 
whilst a huge increase has been seen in numbers, it was felt that publicity around the 
role of Tai Teg, should be highlighted and a simplification of affordable housing 
should be sought, as many people still did not understand the difference between 
affordable and social housing.  
 
Potential actions to include: 
 

 Investigate further temporary/emergency/long term accommodation options 
 Innovate for homeless solutions 
 Housing mix should reflect the need locally (LHMA) 
 Housing contributions based on household but perhaps should be bedrooms 

instead 
 More housing aimed at younger people 
 More different types of housing including bungalows 
 There is a shortage of affordable rented housing in rural areas 
 More bungalows wanted as flexible housing options 
 More publicity for Tai Teg – clarity of offer is needed 
 Councillors want to have strategic conversations with the RSLs 
 Tenure options should not be to the detriment of tenant suitability – need to 

ensure that social housing tenants contribute positively to the community and 
areas don’t become ghettos for difficult and chaotic people 

 Affordable housing options – Tai Teg needs to consider using text alerts 
service/Instagram. The latter social medium platform is geared to younger 
people 

 More communication between the different layers of Councils – County, 
Town, Community and City to be consulted on developing housing need 
information for their areas –stats don’t tell the whole story. 

 More communication with developers/builders – they must have sales 
information to develop their site plans, is it something we can work on 
together? 

Page 79



 Housing should be flexible – the needs of the young and older should be 
considered 

 Planning obligations need to be reviewed to see if smaller homes can be 
developed without causing higher costs for developers 

 
Theme 3 – Safe & Healthy Homes 
 
Theme: All groups agreed that the theme is still relevant and appropriate. 
 
Outcomes: 
 
General agreement that the outcomes are still relevant but need re-wording slightly 
to update. Several groups picked up that Outcome 4 seemed to be worded badly 
and should probably read something like “Target limited financial resources………..” 
Investigate opportunities for limited financial resources….” 
 
Some debate about whether the control of use of holiday caravan parks for holiday 
use outcome is now business as usual or not. On balance Members though we’d 
made really good progress but it was still an issue and they would like to keep 
reference to it in the strategy to maintain the profile and to ensure the project 
continues to be resourced. 
 
Concern from some members that small sites are cropping up in the countryside. If 
holiday use – do they have appropriate consents? Are some slipping into residential 
use and if so do they have consent and have they been captured on our caravan site 
database? 
 
Outcome 1 DCC Housing Stock achieved WHQS in 2014 its now about maintaining 
the standard. WHQS outcome should be retained but re-worded to reflect DCC’s 
position. 
 
Potential actions to include: 
 
Again general agreement that they still broadly relevant but need updating. 
 
Some suggestions from members and officers: 
 

 Continue with and extend Additional Licensing for HMO’s in Rhyl and other 
towns within the county 
 

 Manage,/implement/enforce Minimum Energy Efficiency Standards (MEES) in 
private rented sector 

 

 Develop formal arrangement with housing management provider to manage 
complex/absentee landlord cases (i.e. IMO’s) 

 

 Continue to develop partnership project with homelessness team and 
providers to ensure better quality accommodation (including reducing 
potential overcrowding at source) 
 

Page 80



 Campaign to empower private rents sector tenants i.e. raise awareness of 
tenants’ rights and landlord obligations. 
 

 
Theme 4: Homes and support for vulnerable people 
 
Theme:  Most groups were happy with the theme and the wording.   
 
Outcomes:  Agreed that the desired outcomes are still relevant apart from outcome 6 
which relates to the introduction of SARTH, which has already been implemented.  
 
 
Potential actions to include: 
 

 What housing is available for people with low needs (carers)? 
 Provision for people who are older with large properties who want retirement 

bungalows (plus alternatives) 
 Welfare cap of £55 for those under 35 – partnerships with education 
 How do we communicate our Denbighshire County Council offer to the 

community? 
 Planning has worked against some our services versus quality living (Rhyl 

Regeneration) – e.g. some charity provision (register of fragmented projects) 
 Regeneration should consider specific housing for younger people 

(transitional living) as a stepping stone – multi-agency approach 
 The greatest support for people is other people (shared living) and return to 

“old” culture 
 All new build should be accessible 
 “Vulnerable” need to be separated into categories – older, younger, mental 

health. Continuum – who is more vulnerable than the next person 
 Council homelessness properties – specific outcome.  Council and RSLs 

need alternative housing 
 Energy ratings – tackling fuel poverty, EPC, LAD and NEST 
 People falling through the gaps with homelessness, not the traditional rough 

sleepers but also sofa surfers 
 Older people trapped in larger properties as there is no suitable move on 

accommodation for them, more bungalows needed in social housing 
 
 
Theme 5: Promoting and supporting communities 
 
Theme: Yes, the theme is still relevant as this is important to ensure we build 
sustainable communities and paces where people want to live and work.  
 
Most groups were happy with the theme and the wording.  One group suggested 
combining theme 1 and theme 2 together.   
 
Outcomes: Need new outcomes to reflect the need to create mixed communities, 
including getting the physical attributes right when delivering new build, town centre 
regen such as shared spaces, open spaces, community facilities,  
 

Page 81



Also promote Tai Teg to ensure mixed tenures demand. 
 
Community development approach will be important 
 
Potential actions to include: 
 
 Mixed communities (tenure and property types) 
 Improve partnerships (Registered Social Landlords/providers/Town Councils) 
 Inclusion Plan – community involvement 
 Promote Tai Teg (Affordable Housing Register) 
 Tenant accreditation 
 Support community responsibility to prevent negative outcomes – fly tipping, etc. 
 Develop transitional accommodation for younger people 
 Invest in infrastructure for sites 
 Link between housing and health & wellbeing 
 Open space/communal area develop into resources – community cafes, etc. 
 Mix younger and older people 
 Volunteering and personal development 
 Tree need to be integral part of communities – new and existing 
 Tackling eyesore sites – improve them 
 
Summary of results 
 

Geoff mentioned 3 themes to the actions in his summary – people this was about 
the mixed community (tenure / property size), physical side this was design / 
open and shared spaces etc and community development supporting 
communities to be resilient etc– 3 future themes for the Housing Strategy? 

 

Page 82



Appendix D - Outline structure for the draft Denbighshire’s 
Housing and Homelessness strategy 
 

Denbighshire’s Draft Housing and Homelessness Strategy 2020-
2025  
Ensuring that everyone is supported to live in homes that meet their 
needs 
Forward – Lead Member for Housing 
Introduction 
 
Vision and aspiration 

Everyone is supported with pride to live in homes that meet their needs, 
within the vibrant and sustainable communities Denbighshire aspires to 

 
Local context – our County 
This information will be fully revised with the latest statistical information. To include 
demographic profile for the County (population, age profile, ethnicity, long-term health 
problems or disabilities) and trends and forecasts; tenure and housing mix; affordability; 
housing supply; house prices; homelessness; empty homes; Welsh Index of Multiple 
Deprivation; fuel poverty; stock condition.   
 

National/ regional context 
Brief outline of guidance, plans & strategies and trends impacting on housing strategy 

 
What have we achieved? 
Outline of key achievements of previous Local Housing Strategy and lessons learned. 

 
Priorities/Underlying principles 
Underlying principles: supporting the local economy (links with Economic & Community 
Ambition Strategy), reducing inequalities, community engagement and involvement, 
sustainability, Welsh Language & culture, communication. 

 
Theme 1 – More homes to meet local need and demand 

 Empty homes – actions to bring back into use 

 Delivery of market housing to meet needs (quantity & type) 

 Bringing forward sites through a proactive approach – unlocking stalled sites, land 
assembly, pre-planning application advice, development briefs, public sector land 

 Identifying infrastructure needs 

 Gypsies and Travellers needs 

 On-going monitoring of need and demand 
 

Page 83



Theme 2 – Creating a supply of affordable homes 
 Review of affordable housing policy  

 On-going monitoring of housing market & needs 

 Set targets for affordable housing delivery 

 How to support public sector delivery 

 How to support private sector delivery 

 New models for delivery & for funding 

 Links to Economic Ambition Strategy & improved income levels 

Theme 3 – Ensuring safe and healthy homes 
 Welsh Housing Quality Standards 

 Private rented sector - Landlord registration and licensing 

 Space standards and design – lifetime homes 

 Fuel poverty 

 Enforcement – standards in private sector, licensing & inspection of HMOs, local 
initiatives 

 Disabled facilities grants & other assistance 

Theme 4 – Preventing and addressing homelessness 
 Homelessness prevention and housing options 

 Opportunities and options for young people 

 Advice and support 

 Single Access Route to Housing 
 

Theme 5 – Supporting people and sustainable communities 
 Address ageing population issues 

 Vulnerable tenants/households 

 Employment & training – apprenticeships  

 Community engagement 

 Environmental improvements  

 Eyesore sites 
 

Delivery  
Resources 
Monitoring 
Governance, Implementation & Review  

 
Appendices: 

 Detailed local statistics 

 National & Regional context – detail 

 Glossary 

 
 
 

Page 84



Action Plan: 
For each action: 

 Description 

 Priority 

 Outcomes & benefits 

 Resource requirements 

 Identified partners 

 Indicative timescales 

 
What’s new in the revised strategy? 
 
The housing agenda has moved on significantly since last housing strategy was adopted in 
December 2015 and will include a number of new elements: 
 

- Young people – housing options 
- Corporate Plan will be fully integrated (2017); 
- Greater focus on homelessness in the text and action plan; 
- Increase focus on a corporate approach to empty homes; 
- Climate and ecological change; 
- Increasing the housing stock owned by Denbighshire County Council (Council 

Housing); 
- Mental health and dementia; 
- Addressing changes to the Welsh Housing Quality Standards for Council and 

Registered Social Landlord properties – with increased decarbonisation focus 
expected in 2021 

 
 

 

Page 85



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report to Performance Scrutiny Committee 

Date of meeting 19 March 2020 

Lead Officer Rhian Evans, Scrutiny Co-ordinator 

Report author Rhian Evans, Scrutiny Co-ordinator  

Title Scrutiny Work Programme 

1. What is the report about? 

The report presents Performance Scrutiny Committee with its draft forward work 

programme for members’ consideration. 

2. What is the reason for making this report? 

To seek the Committee to review and agree on its programme of future work, and to 

update members on relevant issues. 

3. What are the Recommendations? 

That the Committee: 

3.1 considers the information provided and approves, revises or amends its forward work 

programme as it deems appropriate; and 

3.2 identifies key messages and themes from the current meeting which it wishes to 

publicise via the press and/or social media. 

4. Report details 

4.1 Section 7 of Denbighshire County Council’s Constitution sets out each Scrutiny 

Committee’s terms of reference, functions and membership, as well as the rules of 

procedure and debate.   

Page 87

Agenda Item 8



 
 

 

4.2 The Constitution stipulates that the Council’s scrutiny committees must set, and 

regularly review, a programme for their future work.  By reviewing and prioritising 

issues, members are able to ensure that the work programme delivers a member-

led agenda. 

 

4.3 For a number of years it has been an adopted practice in Denbighshire for scrutiny 

committees to limit the number of reports considered at any one meeting to a 

maximum of four plus the Committee’s own work programme report.  The aim of 

this approach is to facilitate detailed and effective debate on each topic. 

 

4.4 In recent years the Welsh Government (WG) and the Wales Audit Office (WAO) 

have highlighted the need to strengthen scrutiny’s role across local government and 

public services in Wales, including utilising scrutiny as a means of engaging with 

residents and service-users.  From now on scrutiny will be expected to engage 

better and more frequently with the public with a view to securing better decisions 

which ultimately lead to better outcomes for citizens.  The WAO will measure 

scrutiny’s effectiveness in fulfilling these expectations. 

 

4.5 Having regard to the national vision for scrutiny whilst at the same time focussing 

on local priorities, the Scrutiny Chairs and Vice-Chairs Group (SCVCG) 

recommended that the Council’s scrutiny committees should, when deciding on 

their work programmes, focus on the following key areas: 

 

 budget savings; 

 achievement of the Corporate Plan objectives (with particular emphasis on 

the their deliverability during a period of financial austerity);  

 any other items agreed by the Scrutiny Committee (or the SCVCG) as high 

priority (based on the PAPER test criteria – see reverse side of the ‘Member 

Proposal Form’ at Appendix 2) and; 

 Urgent, unforeseen or high priority issues 

 

4.6  Scrutiny Proposal Forms 

 As mentioned in paragraph 4.2 above the Council’s Constitution requires scrutiny 

committees to prepare and keep under review a programme for their future work.  

Page 88



 
 

To assist the process of prioritising reports, if officers are of the view that a subject 

merits time for discussion on the Committee’s business agenda they have to 

formally request the Committee to consider receiving a report on that topic.  This is 

done via the submission of a ‘proposal form’ which clarifies the purpose, importance 

and potential outcomes of suggested subjects.  No officer proposal forms have 

been received for consideration at the current meeting. 

 

4.7 With a view to making better use of scrutiny’s time by focussing committees’ 

resources on detailed examination of subjects, adding value through the decision-

making process and securing better outcomes for residents, the SCVCG decided 

that members, as well as officers, should complete ‘scrutiny proposal forms’ 

outlining the reasons why they think a particular subject would benefit from 

scrutiny’s input.  A copy of the ‘member’s proposal form’ can be seen at Appendix 

2.  The reverse side of this form contains a flowchart listing questions which 

members should consider when proposing an item for scrutiny, and which 

committees should ask when determining a topic’s suitability for inclusion on a 

scrutiny forward work programme.  If, having followed this process, a topic is not 

deemed suitable for formal examination by a scrutiny committee, alternative 

channels for sharing the information or examining the matter can be considered e.g. 

the provision of an ‘information report’, or if the matter is of a very local nature 

examination by the relevant Member Area Group (MAG).  No items should be 

included on a forward work programme without a ‘scrutiny proposal form’ being 

completed and accepted for inclusion by the Committee or the SCVCG.  Assistance 

with their completion is available from the Scrutiny Co-ordinator.  

 

 Cabinet Forward Work Programme 

4.8 When determining their programme of future work it is useful for scrutiny 

committees to have regard to Cabinet’s scheduled programme of work.  For this 

purpose a copy of the Cabinet’s forward work programme is attached at Appendix 

3.  

Progress on Committee Resolutions  

4.9 A table summarising recent Committee resolutions and advising members on 

progress with their implementation is attached at Appendix 4 to this report.   

Page 89



 
 

5. Scrutiny Chairs and Vice-Chairs Group 

 Under the Council’s scrutiny arrangements the Scrutiny Chairs and Vice-Chairs 

Group (SCVCG) performs the role of a coordinating committee.  The Group met on 

30 January 2020, no items were referred to this Committee for consideration at that 

meeting.  The Group’s next meeting is scheduled for the afternoon of 19 March 

2020.  

6. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate 

Priorities? 

Effective scrutiny will assist the Council to deliver its corporate priorities in line with 

community needs and residents’ wishes.  Continual development and review of a 

coordinated work programme will assist the Council to deliver its corporate 

priorities, improve outcomes for residents whilst also managing austere budget 

cuts. 

7. What will it cost and how will it affect other services? 

Services may need to allocate officer time to assist the Committee with the activities 

identified in the forward work programme, and with any actions that may result 

following consideration of those items. 

8. What are the main conclusions of the Well-being Impact 

Assessment?  

A Well-being Impact Assessment has not been undertaken in relation to the 

purpose or contents of this report.  However, Scrutiny’s through it work in examining 

service delivery, policies, procedures and proposals will consider their impact or 

potential impact on the sustainable development principle and the well-being goals 

stipulated in the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. 

Page 90



 
 

9. What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny 

and others? 

None required for this report.  However, the report itself and the consideration of the 

forward work programme represent a consultation process with the Committee with 

respect to its programme of future work. 

10. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to 

reduce them? 

No risks have been identified with respect to the consideration of the Committee’s 

forward work programme.  However, by regularly reviewing its forward work 

programme the Committee can ensure that areas of risk are considered and 

examined as and when they are identified, and recommendations are made with a 

view to addressing those risks. 

11. Power to make the decision 

Section 7.11 of the Council’s Constitution stipulates that scrutiny committees and/or 

the Scrutiny Chairs and Vice-Chairs Group will be responsible for setting their own 

work programmes, taking into account the wishes of Members of the Committee 

who are not members of the largest political group on the Council. 

Contact Officer:   

Rhian Evans,  

Scrutiny Coordinator 

Tel No: (01824) 712554 

e-mail: rhian.evans@denbighshire.gov.uk  

Page 91

mailto:rhian.evans@denbighshire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 Performance Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan    Appendix 1 

 1 

 
Note: Any items entered in italics have not been approved for inclusion at the meeting shown by the Committee. Such reports are listed here for 
information, pending formal approval. 

 

Meeting Lead 
Member(s) 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date 
Entered 

        

30 April Cllr. Brian 
Jones 

1. Commercial Waste 
Service Evaluation 
Plan 

To consider an the results of an 
evaluation exercise of the entire 
commercial waste service, 
including the performance of the 
Veolia contract and Waste 
Technical Team (including 
proposals for service changes 
and improvements) 

Assurances that the Service 
is performing well and 
provides value for money in 
order to ensure that it aligns 
to the new waste operating 
model  

Tony 
Ward/Tara 
Dumas/Alan 
Roberts 

By 
SCVCG 
January 
2019 

 Cllr. 
Bobby 
Feeley 

2. Cefndy Healthcare  To consider the findings of the 
Project Board’s work in drawing 
up an options appraisal for future 
delivery of the company’s 
business 

To formulate 
recommendations in relation 
to a future business model 
that will support the delivery 
of the Council’s priority 
relating to Resilient 
Communities 

Phil Gilroy/Ann 
Lloyd/Simon 
Rowlands/Nick 
Bowles 

Septemb
er 2019 

        

11 June Cllr. 
Bobby 
Feeley 

1. Draft Director of Social 
Services Annual 
Report for 2019/20 

To scrutinise the content of the 
draft annual report to ensure it 
provides a fair and clear 
evaluation of performance in 
2019/20 and clearly articulates 
future plans 

Identification of any specific 
performance issues which 
require further scrutiny by the 
committee in future 

Nicola 
Stubbins 

June 
2019 

 Cllr. Julian 
Thompson
-Hill 

2. Annual Performance 
Review 2019-20 

To monitor the Council’s progress 
in delivering the  Corporate Plan 
2019-20  

Ensuring that the Council 
meets its targets to deliver its 
Corporate Plan and the 
Council’s services in line with 
its aspirations and to the 
satisfaction of local residents 

Alan Smith/Iolo 
McGregor/Hei
di Barton-Price 

June 
2019 

        

16 July Cllr. Brian 
Jones 

1. Draft Sustainable 
Travel Plan 
 

To consider the draft sustainable 
travel plan (including the Council’s 
role in facilitating the locating of 

To provide observations and 
recommendations that will 
support the delivery of the 

Emlyn 
Jones/Mike 
Jones 

By 
SCVCG 
June 

P
age 93



 Performance Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan    Appendix 1 

 2 

Meeting Lead 
Member(s) 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date 
Entered 

vehicle charging points across the 
county, its work with other local 
authorities and stakeholders with 
respect of their availability and in 
relation to other potential 
alternative travel modes, and in 
supporting the community to 
switch to sustainable fuels)   

corporate priorities relating to 
the environment and 
connected communities by 
reducing CO2 emissions and 
improving travel connectivity  

2018 
(resched
uled 
February 
& 
Novemb
er 2019) 

        

1 October Cllr. Huw 
Hilditch-
Roberts  

1. Provisional External 
Examinations and 
Teacher Assessments  
[Education] 

To review the performance of 
schools and that of looked after 
children 

Scrutiny of performance 
leading to recommendations 
for improvement 

Karen 
Evans/Julian 
Molloy/GwE 

Septemb
er 2019 

 Cllr. 
Bobby 
Feeley 

2. Hafan Deg, Rhyl  
 
Representatives from 
KL Care to be invited 
to attend 
 

To monitor the effectiveness of 
the transfer of the facility and 
services to an external provider 
and the provider’s progress in 
growing and expanding the 
services available at the centre  
 
(the report to include an updated 
Well-being Impact Assessment) 

To evaluate the impact of the 
transfer of the facility and 
services on all stakeholders 
and to assess whether the 
services provided at Hafan 
Deg are in line with the 
contract specification, 
support the Council’s vision 
for adult social care and the 
five ways to well-being and 
the requirements of the 
Social Services and Well-
being (Wales) Act 2014 

Phil Gilroy/Ann 
Lloyd/Katie 
Newe/Dawn 
Wynne 

Septemb
er 2019 

 Cllr. 
Bobby 
Feeley 

3. Cefndy Healthcare 
Annual Report 
2019/20 and Annual 
Plan 2020/21 

To consider the company’s 
performance during 2019/20 and 
its Annual Plan for 2020/21 

An assessment of the 
company’s performance in 
delivering its business within 
budget and meeting targets 
will assist with the 
identification of future trends 
and requirements and 
support the delivery of the 
Council’s priority relating to 
Resilient Communities 

Phil Gilroy/Ann 
Lloyd/Simon 
Rowlands/Nick 
Bowles 

Septemb
er 2019 

        

P
age 94



 Performance Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan    Appendix 1 

 3 

Meeting Lead 
Member(s) 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date 
Entered 

26 
November 

Cllr. Julian 
Thompson
-Hill 

1. Corporate Risk 
Register 

To consider the latest version of 
the Council’s Corporate Risk 
Register and risk appetite 
statement 

Effective monitoring and 
management of identified risk 
to reduce risks to residents 
and the Authority 

Alan Smith/Iolo 
McGregor/Em
ma Horan 

May 
2019 

        

January 
2021  
(date tbc) 

Cllr. Huw 
Hilditch-
Roberts 

1. Verified External 
Examinations  
[Education] 

To review the performance of 
schools and that of looked after 
children; and GwE’s impact on the 
educational attainment of the 
County’s pupils. 
 
The report to include actual 
figures in addition to percentages 
along with school absenteeism 
and exclusion data. 
 
The report to incorporate GwE’s 
Annual report and information on 
the 5 year trend in relation to 
educational attainment in 
Denbighshire 

Scrutiny of performance 
leading to recommendations 
for improvement 

Karen 
Evans/Julian 
Molloy/GwE 

Septemb
er 2019 

 Cllr. Tony 
Thomas 

2. Library Service 
Standards 2019-20 

To consider the results of the 
WG’s annual evaluation of the 
Council’s Library Service and the 
progress made in delivering the 
Council’s Library Strategy 2019-
22  

Identification of any 
slippages in performance in 
order to formulate 
recommendations to redress 
the situation and ensure that 
the Service delivers the 
Council’s Corporate Plan and 
its priorities in relation to 
Young People, Resilient and 
Connected Communities 

Liz 
Grieve/Bethan 
Hughes 

January 
2020 

 
 
  

P
age 95



 Performance Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan    Appendix 1 

 4 

Future Issues 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date 
Entered 

Dolwen Residential Care Home To consider the Task and Finish Group’s 
recommendations relating to the future 
provision of services at Dolwen 
Residential Care Home, Denbigh 

Pre-decision scrutiny of the task 
and finish group’s findings and the 
formulation of recommendations 
for presentation to Cabinet with 
respect of the future provision of 
services at Dolwen with a view to 
ensuring that everyone is 
supported to live in homes that 
meet their needs and are able to 
live independent and resilient lives  

Task and Finish 
Group/Phil 
Gilroy/Abbe 
Harvey 

July 2018 

School Improvement Plans 
 

[Education] 

To discuss with representatives of 
particular schools their progress in 
achieving their improvement plans 

Provision of support to the schools 
to ensure they deliver their plans 
and improve outcomes for their 
pupils and the school as a whole 

Karen 
Evans/Julian 
Molloy 

February 
2018 

Implementation of the Donaldson 
Report ‘Successful Futures’ – 
Independent Review of Curriculum 
and Assessment Arrangements in 
Wales  
[Education] 
 
Dependent upon the legislative 
timetable  

To consider and monitor the plans to 
implement the agreed measures adopted 
by WG following the consultation on the 
review’s findings  

Better outcomes for learners to 
equip them with jobs market skills 

Karen Evans April 2015 

 
Information/Consultation Reports 
 

Date Item (description / title) Purpose of report Author Date 
Entered 

March & September 
2020 
 
[Information] 

Corporate Plan 2017/22 (Q3) 2019/20 
 
&  
 
Corporate Plan 2017/22 Q1 2020/21 
To monitor the Council’s progress in 
delivering the  Corporate Plan  

Ensuring that the Council meets its targets and 
delivers its Corporate Plan and the Council’s 
services in line with its aspirations and to the 
satisfaction of local residents 

Alan Smith/Iolo 
McGregor/Heidi 
Barton-Price 

September 
2018 

P
age 96



 Performance Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan    Appendix 1 

 5 

Feb/May/Sept/November 
each year 
 
[Information] 

Quarterly ‘Your Voice’ complaints 
performance to include social services 
complaints  

To scrutinise Services’ performance in 
complying with the Council’s complaints and 
identify areas of poor performance with a view 
to the development of recommendations to 
address weaknesses.  The report to include: 
(i) a comprehensive explanation on why 

targets have not been met when dealing 
with specific complaints, reasons for non-
compliance, and measures taken to rectify 
the failures and to ensure that future 
complaints will be dealt with within the 
specified timeframe;  

(ii) how services encourage feedback and use 
it to redesign or change the way they deliver 
services; and 

(iii)details of complaints which have been 
upheld or partially upheld and the lessons 
learnt from them. 

 
Consideration of the information provided 
will assist the Committee to determine 
whether any issues merit detailed scrutiny 

Kevin Roberts/Ann 
Lloyd/Phil Gilroy 

November 
2018 

Information Report 
(February 2020) 

Management of School Governing 
Bodies 

To update the Committee on the progress 
made in relation to filling vacant school 
governor and clerk posts, securing School 
Governing Bodies’ compliance with completing 
mandatory training courses and ensuring that 
all schools’ governor information packs contain 
full details of the role and responsibilities of 
governors, anticipated time commitments for 
the role and information on the availability 
governor allowances to cover specific costs 
and travel expenses that may be incurred in 
order to fulfil the role   

Karen 
Evans/Geraint 
Davies/Ian Land 

 

Information Report  
(June 2020) 

Housing Services – Review of the 
effectiveness of the new working model 
for Housing Officers  

To review the effectiveness and impact of the 
new Housing Officer model in delivering 
personal advice and support to tenants, 
particularly those who reside in older people’s 
schemes 

Geoff Davies/Jane 
Moore 

March 2019 

P
age 97



 Performance Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan    Appendix 1 

 6 

 
 
 
Note for officers – Committee Report Deadlines 
 

Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline 

      

30 April  16 April 11 June 28 May 16 July 2 July 

 
Performance Scrutiny Work Programme.doc 
Updated 06/03/2020 RhE 

P
age 98



 

Appendix 2 

Member Proposal Form for Scrutiny Forward Work Programme 
 

 
NAME OF SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

 

 
TIMESCALE FOR CONSIDERATION 
 

 

 
TOPIC 
 

 

 
What needs to be scrutinised (and why)? 
 

 
 
 

 
Is the matter one of concern to 
residents/local businesses? 
 

 
YES/NO 

 
Can Scrutiny influence and change 
things?  
(if ‘yes’ please state how you think scrutiny 
can influence or change things) 
 

 
YES/NO 

 
 
 

 
Does the matter relate to an 
underperforming service or area? 
 

 
YES/NO 

 
Does the matter affect a large number of 
residents or a large geographical area of 
the County  
(if ‘yes’ please give an indication of the size 
of the affected group or area) 
 

 
YES/NO 

 
 
 

Is the matter linked to the Council’s 
Corporate priorities 
(if ‘yes’ please state which priority/priorities) 
 

 
YES/NO 

 

To your knowledge is anyone else 
looking at this matter? 
(If ‘yes’, please say who is looking at it) 
 

 
YES/NO 

 

If the topic is accepted for scrutiny who 
would you want to invite to attend e.g. 
Lead Member, officers, external experts, 
service-users? 

 

 
Name of Councillor/Co-opted Member 
 

 

 
Date 

 

Page 99



 

Consideration of a topic’s suitability for scrutiny 

 

Does it stand up to the PAPER test? 

 

 

 

 

 

NO  (no further action or information report) 

 

 

Proposal Form/Request received 

(careful consideration given to reasons for request) 

Does it stand up to the PAPER test? 

 Public interest – is the matter of concern to residents? 

 Ability to have an impact – can Scrutiny influence and change 

things? 

 Performance – is it an underperforming area or service? 

 Extent – does it affect a large number of residents or a large 

geographic area? 

 Replication – is anyone else looking at it? 

 

No further action required by 

scrutiny committee.  Refer 

elsewhere or request 

information report?   

 Determine the desired outcome(s) 

 Decide on the scope and extent of the scrutiny work required and the most 

appropriate method to undertake it (i.e. committee report, task and finish group 

inquiry, or link member etc.) 

 If task and finish route chosen, determine the timescale for any inquiry, who will 

be involved, research requirements, expert advice and witnesses required, 

reporting arrangements etc. 

YES 

NO 

Page 100



Appendix 3 
Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead member and 
contact officer 

 

24 Mar 2020 1 Implementation of an 
Alternative Delivery Model 
(ADM) for various leisure 
related activities/functions: 
approval of contract award to 
Denbighshire Leisure Ltd 

To seek approval of contract 
award to Denbighshire 
Leisure Ltd 

Yes Councillors Bobby Feeley & 
Julian Thompson-Hill / 
Graham Boase / Siân Lloyd 
Price 

 2 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Steve Gadd 

 3 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

      

 

28 Apr 2020 1 Contract Procedure Rules To consider the reviewed 
contract procedures rules 
which will require adoption 
and form part of the council 
constitution 

Tbc Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Lisa Jones / Helen 
Makin 

 2 North Wales Growth Bid 
Governance Agreement 2 

To approve the governance 
arrangements in relation to 
the implementation of the 
growth deal 

Yes Councillor Hugh Evans / 
Graham Boase / Gary 
Williams 

P
age 101



Appendix 3 
Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead member and 
contact officer 

 3 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Steve Gadd 

 4 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

      

 

26 May 2020 1 Final draft Revised Housing & 
Homelessness Strategy & 
Action Plan 

To seek Cabinet’s support 
and recommendation that 
Council approve the 
document 

Yes Councillor Tony Thomas / 
Angela Loftus 

 2 Additional Licensing for Houses 
of Multiple Occupation (HMOs) 

To seek approval for the re-
designation of Rhyl for 
Additional HMO Licensing 
and to expand the scheme to 
include the areas of Denbigh, 
Llangollen & Prestatyn 

Yes Councillor Tony Thomas / 
Emlyn Jones / Andrew Lord 

 3 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Steve Gadd 

 4 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

      

P
age 102



Appendix 3 
Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead member and 
contact officer 

      

30 Jun 2020 1 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Steve Gadd 

 2 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

      

 

28 July 2020 1 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Steve Gadd 

 2 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

      

 
 

Note for officers – Cabinet Report Deadlines 
 

Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline 

      

March 10 March April 14 April May 11 May 
 

P
age 103



Appendix 3 
Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Updated 06/03/2020 - KEJ 
 
Cabinet Forward Work Programme.doc 
 

P
age 104



Appendix 4 
Progress with Committee Resolutions 

 

Date of 
Meeting 

Item number and 
title 

Resolution  Progress 

30 January 
2020 

5 5.  WORK 
OPPORTUNITY 
AND DAY 
ACTIVITY 
SERVICES 
REVIEW 

Resolved:  to report to Cabinet, that 
I. it had read, understood and taken account of the 

Well-being Impact Assessment (Appendix 1) as part 
of its consideration; 

II. subject to the above observations, it supported the 
intention to relocate four services (Popty Catering 
Services, Y Bont, Jobfinding and The Golden 
Group) and to combine Y Bont and the Golden 
Group into one co-located service; and 

III. it recommended for approval the proposal to 
explore the setting up of social firms relating to two 
activities currently being carried out by the Service, 
namely Meifod Wood and Garden Control 

Lead Member and officers 
advised of the Committee’s 
recommendations in relation to 
the Services in readiness for 
them to report to Cabinet 

 6 6.  VERIFIED 
EXTERNAL 
EXAMINATION 
RESULTS 

Resolved: - subject to the above observations: 
i. to receive the information relating to the verified 

performance of the county’s school pupils at Key 
Stage 4 and post 16 examinations during the 
summer of 2019, acknowledging the barriers that 
existed which fettered the Education Service from 
undertaking comparison exercises with previous 
years’ results and with the results of other local 
education authorities; and 

ii. that they were satisfied that both the Council’s 
Education Service staff and GwE personnel had 

Lead Member, Council and GwE 
officers advised of the 
Committee’s resolution  

P
age 105



identified the emerging trends and areas which 
would require improvement going forward at all Key 
Stages.  

 7 7.  DRAFT 
STREET NAMING 
AND 
NUMBERING 
POLICY 

Resolved: - subject to the above observations and the 
noted objection, that – 

i. all new streets be named in Welsh only; 
ii. the option to name streets after individuals be 

removed from the policy; 
iii. the Council’s policy be amended to reflect this and 

presented to Cabinet for approval; and 
iv. it had read, understood and taken account of the 

Well-being Impact Assessment (Appendix 5) as part 
of its consideration 

Lead Member and officers 
advised of the Committee’s 
recommendations 

 8 8.  LIBRARY 
SERVICE 
STANDARDS 
2018-19 AND 
DRAFT LIBRARY 
SERVICE 
STRATEGY 

Resolved:  - subject to the above observations on the 
performance against the 6th Framework of Welsh Public 
Library Standards to receive the report, commend the 
Service and its staff on their excellent service and 
performance, and request that a progress report be 
presented to the Committee in January 2021 

Lead Member and officers 
informed of the Committee’s 
resolution and a progress report 
has been scheduled into the 
Committee’s forward work 
programme for January 2021 – 
see Appendix 1  

 

P
age 106


	Agenda
	2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
	4 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING
	5 CORPORATE RISK REGISTER REVIEW - FEBRUARY 2020
	App 1 - Corporate Risk Register Report 190320
	App 2 - Corporate Risk Register Report  190320
	App 3 - Corporate Risk Register Report  190320

	6 C360 CRM (CUSTOMER RELATIONSHIP MANAGEMENT SYSTEM) UPDATE
	7 DRAFT HOUSING AND HOMELESSNESS STRATEGY - PROGRESS UPDATE
	App A - Housing and Homelessness Strategy Report 190320
	App B - Housing and Homelessness Strategy Report 190320
	App C - Housing and Homelessness Strategy Report 190320 - App C
	App D - Housing and Homelessness Strategy Report 190320

	8 SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME
	Work Programme Report  - App 1[1]
	Work Programme Report  - App 2E
	Work Programme Report  - App 3
	Work Programme Report  - App 4


